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June 25, 2025 
 
To, 
The Corporate Relations Department, 
Department of Corporate Services, 
BSE Limited, 25th Floor, 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai 400001 
 
Re: Scrip Code 974141 (NCDs) 

ISIN: INE466P07010 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

Subject: Intimation of submission of Annual Report. 

Pursuant to Regulation 53(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we wish to inform you that the copy of the Annual Report of 
the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, is enclosed herewith. 

The said document is also being placed at our website at https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/. 

Kindly take the same on record. 

Thanking you 

For and on behalf of Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

 
 
 
 
Gautham Nambiar 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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S.R. BATL/80/ & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

12th Floor 
"UB City" Canberra Block 
No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road 
Bengaluru • 560 001 , India 

Tel : +91 80 6648 9000 

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Vikas Telecom Private Limited ("'the Company"), 
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 3 I, 2025 , the Statement of Profit and Loss, including 
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes 
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of 
material accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 , as 
amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31 , 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the ' Auditor ' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements ' 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics ' 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31 , 2025. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, 
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor ' s responsibilities for the audit of 
the Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, 
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including 
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 
accompanying Ind AS financial statements. 
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Related party transactions and disclosures 
(as described in note 40 of the Ind AS financial statements) 

The Company has unde11aken 
transactions with its related pa11ies in the 
normal course of business and at arm ' s 
length . These include loans taken and 
related interest expense etc. from related 
parties. 

We identified the recording of all 
possible related party transactions and its 
disclosure as set out in respective notes to 
the Ind AS financial statements as a key 
audit matter due to the significance of 
related party transactions and regulatory 
compliances. 

Other Information 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

- Obtained, and read the Company's policies, processes 
and procedures in respect of identifying related pa11ies, 
evaluation of ann 's length, obtaining approval , recording 
and disclosure of related pa11y transactions. 

- We tested, on a sample basis, related pa11y transactions 
with the underlying contracts and other suppo11ing 
documents for appropriate authorization and approval for 
such transactions. 

- We read minutes of board meetings in connection with 
transactions with related pa11ies effected during the year 
and Company's assessment of related party transactions 
being in the ordinary course of business at ann 's length. 

- Assessed the related patiy disclosures in the Ind AS 
financial statements. 

The Company' s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Director 's report, but does not include the Ind AS financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated . If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to repo11 that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial perfonnance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities ; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of uate 
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internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company ' s financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor' s repo11 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic deci sions of users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As pa11 of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether 
ciue to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery , intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management"s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unce11ainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to continue as a going 
concern. lfwe conclude that a material unce11ainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor"s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor' s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regard ing, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we detennine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 3 I, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters . We describe these matters in our auditor 's 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repo1t because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Repo1t) Order, 2020 ("'the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section ( 1 1) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
--Annexure I" a statement on the matters spec ified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

( c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Repo1t are in agreement with the books of account; 

( d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 , as amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 3 1. 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Repo1t in ·'Annexure 2" to this repo1t; 

(g) The provisions of section I 97 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company for the year ended March 3 I, 2025; 
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor' s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our info1mation and according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the Ind AS financial statements; 

11. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

111. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company; 

1v . a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entities ("'Intermediaries" ), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall , whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company ("'Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beliet~, no funds 
have been received by the C0mpany from any person or entity, including foreign entities 
("'Funding Parties' '), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Company shall , whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pa11y 
(--Ultimate Beneficiaries'') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c) Based on such audit procedures perfonned that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
be! ieve that the representations under sub-clause ( a) and (b) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date 
of this audit repo11 is in accordance with section 123 of the Act. 
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v1. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software (refer note 48 to the Ind AS financial statements). Further, during 
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being 
tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved by the Company 
as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chai1ered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: IO I 049W/E300004 

er 
Pa11ner 
Membership Number: 209567 

UDIN: 25209567BMOLWE9 I 58 

Place of Signature: Bengaluru, India 
Date: April 28, 2025 
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING "REPORT ON 
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN 
DATE 

Re: Yikas Telecom Private Limited ( .. the Company .. ) 

In tenns of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, we state that: 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pa11iculars, including quantitative 
details and situation of prope11y, plant and equipment and investment properties. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pa11iculars of intangible assets. 

(b) All Prope11y, plant and equipment and investment prope11ies were physically verified by the 
management in the previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them 
once in three years which is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. No material discrepancies were identified on such verification. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable propet1ies as disclosed in note 4A & 5 to the Ind AS financial 
statements included in prope11y, plant and equipment and investment prope11ies are held in the 
name of the Company. Immovable prope11ies whose title deeds have been pledged with Catalyst 
Trustee are not available with the Company. The same has been independently confinned by 
the Catalyst Trusteeship Limited. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its propet1y, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the 
year ended March 31, 2025. 

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Prope11Y Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 
thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company's business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the 
requirement to repo11 on clause 3(ii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in 
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis 
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to repo11 on clause 3(ii)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) (a) During the year ended March 31 , 2025, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the 
nature of loans, made investments, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms , 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other pa11ies. Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(iii)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, finns, 
Limited Liability Pat1nerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to repo11 on 
clause 3(iii) (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(iv) Provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of guarantees and 
securities given have been complied with by the Company, as applicable. There are no loans 
and investments given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and I 86 of the • 
Act 2013 are applicable. .-;<;>o' 
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(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the pub lic nor accepted any amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act 
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent app licable. Accordingly, the requirement to report 
on clause 3(v) of the Order is not app licable to the Company. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148( I) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 , re lated to construction of buildings/ structures, activity of 
maintenance of commercial property and other related activities and are of the opinion that 
prima facie, the spec ified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, 
however, made a detailed examination of the same. 

(vii) a) The Company is regu lar in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 
inc luding goods and services tax, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues 
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit 
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues 
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable . The provisions relating to provident fund and emp loyee 's state insurance are 
not applicable to the Company. 

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, income tax, sa les-tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, provident fund and other statutory dues which 
have not been depos ited by the Company on account of any d isputes, except for the fo ll owing: 

Name of the Nature of the dues Amount (Rs. Period to Forum where 
statute in million) which the the dispute is 

amo unt pending 
relates 

Income tax Disallowance against 12.75 (net of AY 2019-20 Assessing 
Act, 1961 unexp lained Rs. 3.19 paid Officer 

expenditure u/s 69C under protest) 

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disc losed any transaction, previous ly unrecorded in the 
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the 
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on c lause }(viii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings 01: in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilfu l defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) On an overa ll examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds raised 
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. According ly, the 
requirement to report on c lause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / fi.111her 
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to repo11 on clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or 
partially or optionally conve11ible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xi) (a) No material fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or 
repo11ed during the year. 

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section ( 12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
has been filed by cost auditor, secretarial auditor or by us in Fonn ADT - 4 as prescribed under 
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules , 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 . 
Therefore, the requirement to repo11 on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

(xiii) Transactions with the related pa11ies are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial 
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards . The provisions of section 177 
are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to repo11 under clause 
3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) The internal audit repo11s of the Company issued till the date of the audit repo11, for the period 
under audit have been considered by us. 

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with its directors and hence requirement to repo11 on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not 
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities . 
Accordingly, the requirement to repo11 on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to repo11 on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to repo11 
on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly 
requirement to repo1i on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 45 to the Ind AS financial statements, 
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit repori that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period ofone year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We fu1iher state that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit repoti and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be 
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act) , in compliance 
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section I 35 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed 
in note 39 to the Ind AS financial statements. 

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred 
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies 
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 39 to the Ind AS financial statements. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: IO I 049W/E300004 

Partner 
Membership Number: 209567 

UDIN: 25209567BMOLWE9 l 58 

Place of signature: Bengaluru, India 
Date: April 28, 2025 
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VIK.AS TELECOM PRIVATE LIMTED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Vikas 
Telecom Private Limited ("'the Company'") as of March 31 , 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company 's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India C-·ICAI"). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company 's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial infonnation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repo11ing (the ·'Guidance Note") 
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section I 43( I 0) of the Act, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by !CAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor ' s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company ' s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements. 



S.R. BATL/80/ & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail , accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 3 I, 2025 , based on the internal 
control over financial repotiing criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the !CAI. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chatiered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

Partner 
Membership Number: 209567 

UDIN: 25209567BMOLWE9 l 58 
Place of signature: Bengaluru, India 
Date : April 28, 2025 



Vik.as Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 
Balance Sheet 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Capital work-in-progress 
In vesnnent properties 
lnvestment properties under development 
Intangible assets 
Financial assets 

- Other financial assets 
Non-current tax assets 
Other non-current assets 

Total non-current assets 
Current assets 

Financial assets 
- Trade receivables 
- Cash and cash equi val en ts 
- Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
Total current assets 

Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

Equity share capital 
Other equi ty 

Total equity 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
- Borrowings 
- Other financial liabilities 

Deterred tax liabi lities ( net) 
Other non-current liabilities 

Total non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
- Borrow ings 
- Trade payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
- total outstanding dues of credi tors other than micro and small enterprises 

- Other financ ial liabi lities 
Other current liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (net) 

Total current liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Material accounting policies 

Note 

4A 
48 
5 
6 
7 

8 
9 
10 

II 
12 
13 
14 

15 
16 

17 
18 
19 
20 

21 
22 

23 
24 
25 

As at 
31 March 2025 

16.92 
3,100.54 

34, 162.29 
585. 16 
613.33 

1,785.42 
I 1.1 2 

518.56 
40,793.34 

54.05 
852.00 
236.82 
596.24 

1,739. 11 

42 532.45 

65.15 
( 1,983.08) 
(1,917.93) 

14,65 1.95 
669.67 

78 .3 8 
193.11 

15,593.11 

22,589.77 

15.89 
33.02 

5,934.90 
227 .3 4 

56.35 
28,857.27 

42,532.45 

The accompanying notes referred to above fonn an integral part of tl1ese financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

for S R Batliboi & Associates LLP 

Membership No .. 209567 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 28 Apri l 202 5 

. 101049WIE300004 

Page I 

fur and on bd1alf of the Board of Directors of 

Vik.1s Telecom Private Limited 

Di,-ector 
DIN: 08455937 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 28 Apri l 2025 

Direc/or 

DIN: 097624 I 9 
Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 28 Apri l 2025 

As at 
3 I March 2024 

17.03 
1,485.30 

23,001.74 
6,720.80 
1,533.33 

1,095.00 
61.34 

708.06 
34,622.60 

3147 
0.06 

403. 15 
243.92 
678.60 

35 301.20 

65. 15 
(2,0 14.92) 
(1 ,949.77) 

32,345.78 
462.96 

53. 17 
33.53 

32,895.44 

140.46 

18.25 
35.76 

3,820.80 
340.26 

4,355.53 

35 301.20 

( 'ompan_1· Sccn·tary 

Membership No: Fl2 376 
Place: Bengaluru 

Date 28 Apri l 2025 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202M I992PTC083998 
Statement of Profit and Loss 
(a ll amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
Interest income 
Other income 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Operating and maintenance expenses 
Other expenses 

Total Expenses 

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortization and tax 
Depreciation expense 
Amortization expense 
Finance costs 

Profit before tax 

Tax expenses: 
Current tax 
Deferred tax charge 

Tax expense 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earning per equity share: 
Equity shares of par value of Rs. IO each 
- Basic and diluted (Rs per share) 

1\latcrial accounting policies 

Note 

26 
27 
28 

29 
30 

31 
31 
32 

43 

33 

The accompanying notes referred to above fom1 an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 3 I March 2024 

7,386.67 6.975.95 
33.73 37.69 

257.53 93 .86 
7,677.93 7,107.50 

786 05 761.90 
414.30 401.98 

1,200.35 1,163,88 

6,477.58 5,943.62 
1,104.92 1.034.97 

920.00 920.00 
2,547.67 2,753.71 

1,904.99 1,234,94 

332.90 106.27 
25 .20 332.31 

358.10 438.58 

1,546.89 796.36 

I 546.89 796.36 

237.43 122.23 

.for S R Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Charle red Accvw1lanls 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

Place: Bcngaluru 
Date: 28 April 2025 

01049\V /E300004 

6.~,t 
Direclor 

DIN: 08455937 

Place: Bcngaluru 
Date: 28 April 2025 
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.. ✓ V 
QW Y 1.-

Donnie Dominic George Gaut¥ru Nambiar 
Direclor 

DIN 09762419 

Place: Bcngaluru 

Date: 28 April 2025 

Company Secreta,y 

Membership No: Fl 2376 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 28 April 2025 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 

Statement of Cash Flow 
(all amounts in Rs . million unless otherwise stated) 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: 
Depreciation expense 
.A..1nortisation expense 
Finance costs (net) 

Assets and other balances written off 
Profit on sale of mutual funds 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Interest income 
Operating profit before working capital changes 
Working capital adjustments 
Changes in: 

Trade receivables 
Other financial assets (current and non-current) 
Other assets ( current and non-current) 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities (current and non-current) 
Other liabilities (current and non-current) 
Cash generated from operating activities before taxes 
Taxes (paid) /refund received (net) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 

Cash flow from investing activities 
Payment for purchase of Investment Properties and Properly, plant and equipment 
and Intangihles including Capital work-in-pro1:,rress and Investment property under 
development 

Investment in deposits with banks (net) 
Redemption in mutual funds (net) 
Interest received 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flow from financing activities 
Repayments of borrowings 
Proceeds from borrowings (net of issue expenses) 
Dividend paid 
Interest paid 
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12) 
Balances with banks 

- in current accounts 
- in escrow accounts 

Material accounting policies (refer note 3) 

For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

1,904 .99 

1,104.92 
920.00 

2,547 .67 

0.55 
(6.69) 

(I 1.03) 
(33.73) 

6,426.68 

(22.58) 
(258.84) 
(364.4I) 

(5 . 11 l 
176.29 
46.66 

5,998.69 
(226.33) 

5 772.36 

(4,701.73) 

(258.54) 
6 69 

27.03 
(4,926.55) 

I 19,67704) 
24,223.49 
(1 ,5 15.07) 
(3,025.25) 

6.13 

851.94 
0.06 

852.00 

844.94 
7 06 

852.00 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

1,234.94 

1,034.97 
920.00 

2,753 .71 

(24.41 l 
(9.07) 
37 69) 

5,872.45 

0.58 
90.74 

(12923) 
(65 .05) 

(259.26) 
(88.81) 

5,421.42 
51.12 

5 472.54 

(4,676.27) 

(23. IO) 
24.41 
32.66 

(4,642.30) 

(33,129.85) 
35,335.79 

(3,166.80) 
(960.86) 

( 130.62) 
130.68 

0,06 

0.06 
0,06 

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

for SR Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accow1tants 

Place: Bengalum 
Date: 28 April 2025 

n No: 101049WIE300004 

for and on behalfof the Board of Directors of 

~~f ''''"" Ll:.~l ~!.:~., 
Director Director Company Si:crclary 

D!N: 08455937 DIN: 097624I9 Membership No: F12376 
Place: Bengalum 
Date: 28 April 2025 

Place: Bengalurn 
Date: 28 April 2025 

Place: Bengalum 
Date: 28 April 2025 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 
Statement of changes in equity 
(all amounts in Rs . million unless othcnvise stated) 

A. Equity share capital• 

Particulars 
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid 
Balance as at I April 2023 
Add: Issued during Lhe yr:ar 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

Balance as at I April 2024 
Add : Issued duriug the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 
* Also refer note 15 

B. Other Equity•• 

Balance as at 1 April 2023 
Additions during tl1e year 
Profit for the year 

Particulars 

Transfer to debenture redemption reserves 
Other comprehensive income 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

Balance as at I April 2024 
Additions during tl1e year 
Profit for the year 
Transfer to dt::benlure redemption rest:rves 
Interim dividend paid on equity shares 
Other comprehensive income 
Balance as at 3 I March 2025 
••Also refer note 16 

Material accounting policies (refer note 3) 

General reserve 

50,00 

50.00 

50.00 

50.00 

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral pa11 of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

for S R Batliboi & Associates LLP 
( 'harterl!d Accountants 

Membership No.: 209567 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 28 April 2025 

o 101049W/E300004 

Equity 
component of 
Compulsorily 

convertible 
debentures 

2,152,59 

2,152.59 

2,152.59 

2.152.59 

Page 4 

Reserves and Surplus 
Equity Retained 

component of 
Optionally 
convertible 
debentures 

1,575.09 

1,575.09 

1.575.09 

1,575.09 

i:T 

:1Saprn 
Director 
DIN: 08455937 
Place: Bengalum 
Date: 28 April 2025 

earnings 

796.36 
(250.80 ) 

545.56 

545.56 

1.546 89 

0 .5 15.07) 

577.38 

Debenture 
redemption 

resen'cs 

244.20 
250.80 

-t95.00 

495.00 

495.00 

No. of Sha res 

6,5 15,036 

6,515,036 

6,5 15,036 

6,515,036 

Capital reserve 

(6,833.16) 

(6,833.16) 

(6,833.16) 

(6,833.16) 

Amount 

65.15 

65.15 

65.15 

65.15 

Total 

(2,811.28) 
250.80 
796.36 

(250.80) 

(2.01-t.92} 

(2,01-t.92) 

1.546 89 

11.51507) 

(1,983.08} 

~'v1' 
Donnie Dominic George Gautham Nambiar 
D1rec:1ur 

DIN: 09762419 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date : 28 Apri l 2025 

c ·ompany Sec:reta,y 

Membership No: Fl 2376 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 28 April 2025 



Vik:1s Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: L64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise s lated) 

Company background 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited ("VTPL" or " the Company") was incorporated on 29 June 1992 having registered office at 12th Floor, Pinnacle Tower, Embassy 
One, 8, Bellary Road, Ganganagar, Bengaluru , Kamataka - 560032. l11e Company has constructed office buildings fonning IT SEZ and Non-SEZ parks in 
Bangalore. The operations of the Cornpilny comprise of real estate developments, leas ing of commercial real estate and maintenance of the buildings. TI1c 
Company's debt securities are listed on recognised stock exchange. 

2 Basis of preparation 
Statement of compliance to Ind AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as defined in Rule 2( l)(aJ of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 (' the Act'), read with relevant rules issued thereunder 
and other accounting principles (as amended from time to time) generally accepted in India, and other relevant provisions of the Act. The financial statements \Vere 
approved for issue by tl1e Company's Board of Directors on 28 April 2025. 
·n1e financ ial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions & other events in similar circumstances. 

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 
New and amended standards 
The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for items disclosed below: 

Ind AS 116 - Leases 
On 9 September 2024, the MinisU)' of Corporate Affai rs issued amendments to Ind AS 11 6 concerning sale and leaseback transactions. The amendment impact 
how a seller-lessee accounts for variable lease payments that arise in a sale -and leaseback transaction. The amendments introduce a new accounting model for 
variable payments and w ill require seller-lessees to reassess and potentially restate sale and- leaseback transactions. 

Ind AS 11 7 - Insurance Contracts 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued a notification dated 12 August 2024 introducing Ind AS 11 7. Insurance Contracts for accounting of insurance 
contracts which replaces the current standard Ind AS 104, Insurance Contracts. The amendments are applicable with effect from 12 AUb'USt 2024. 
Additionally, amendments have been made to Ind AS 101 , First-tim e Adoption oflmlian Accounting Standards, Ind AS 103 , Business Combinations, Ind AS 105, 
Non current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations , Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments and Ind AS 
I I 5, Revenue from Contracts with Customers to align them with Ind AS 117. The amendments also introduce enhanced disclosure requirements. particularly in lnd 
AS I 07. to provide clarity regarding financial instrum ents associated with insurance contracts. 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued a clarification dated 28 September 2024 that an insurer or insurance company may provide its financial statement as 
per Ind AS l04 for the purposes of consolidated financial statements of its parent, investor, or venrurer till the IRDAI has notified Ind AS 11 7. 

The above amendments are not relevant or do not have an impact on the Financial statt!ments of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standard, 
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. 

3 Material accounting policies 
This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financ ial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to 
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

3.01 Functional and presen tation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's fu nctional currency and the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the Company operates. All financial infonnation presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded off to nearest million, except shares and per share data. 

3.02 Basis of measurement 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financia l assets and liabilities that are measured at fair values (refer accounting 
policies regarding financial instrument). 

3.03 Use of judgements and estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS) requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are 
revised and in any future periods affected. 

lnfonnation about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recogn ised in the Financial statements is 
included in the following notes: 
i) Classification of lease arrangements as finance lease or operating lease - Note 3.13 
ii) Classification of assets as invesnn ent propenies or as property, plant and equipment - Notes 3.06 and 3.07 

Page 5 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAI992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Mat~rial accounting policies (continued) 

3.03 Use of judgements and estimates (continued) 

Assumptions and estimations uncertainties 
lnformation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk resulting in a material adjustment to the financial statements are included in 
the following notes: 

i) Note 3.06 & 3.07 • Useful lives of Investment property and Property, plant and equipment. 

ii) Note 3.10: Valuation of financial instruments. 
iii) Note 3.17: Recognition of deterred tax asset on carried forward losses and recognition of minimum alternate tax credit: availability of future taxable profit 
against which tax losses carried forward can be used. 

iv) Note 5, Note 6 and Nore 3.10 as regards de1ermination of fair valuation and disclosures and impain11enl of non-financial assets being investment properties and 
intangible assets - The fair value of investrnent properties and intangible assets are reviewed regularly by management with reference to independent property 
valuations and market conditions existing at half yearly basis . The independent valuers are independent appraisers with a recognised and relevant professional 
qualification and with recent experience in the location and category of the investment properties being valued. Judgment is also applied in determining the extent 
and frequency of independent appraisals. 

3.04 Current versus non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 
An usset is treuted as L·urrent when ii is: 
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the repm1ing period; or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period . 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A /iahihry is current when: 

- It is expected to be settled in nonnal operating cycle; 
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
- It is due to be settled witl1in twelve months after tl1e reporting period; or 
-There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after tl1e reporting period . 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 
twelve months as its operating cycle. 
The Company has net current liabilities of Rs.27. 118. 16 million as at 31 March 2025 mainly due to the maturity of :-.JCD in August 2025 and maturity of term 
loans during the financial year ending 3 I March 2026. Based on the Company's liquidity position including undrawn borrowing facilities. the Company will be 
able to refinance its borrowings and meet its current obligations as and when they fall due. 

3.05 Measurement of fair values 
A number of tl1e Company's acconnting policies and disclosures require tl,e measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
A fair value measurement ofa non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to anotl1er market part icipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

l11e Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the 
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
The Company has an estahlished control framework with respect to the measurement of foir values. 1l1e Company engages with external valuers for measurement 
of fair values in the absence of quoted prices in active markets. 
While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels 
in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other tlian quoted prices included in Level I tl,at arc observable for tl1e asset or liability, either directly (i .e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data(unobservable inputs). 

\Vhen measuring the fair value ofan asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of 
an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair 
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to 1.he entire measurement. The Company recognizes Lransfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy 
at the end of the reporting period during which tl1e changes have occurred. 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs . millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.06 Investment properties 
Property that is held for long-tenn rental yields or for capital appreciation or both is classified as investment properties. Investment properties is measured initially 
at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expendirure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with tl1e expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of 
the assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as inveshnent properties under development. All other repairs and maintenance costs are 
expensed when incurred. When pai1 ofan investment properties 1s replaced, the carrying amount of such replaced investment property is derecognised . 

Investment properties are depreciated on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. However, where the management's estimate of the remaining useful 
life of the assets on a review subsequent to the time of acquisition is different, then depreciation is provided over the remaining useful life based on the revised 
useful life. The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively. 

Pursuant to this policy. Management's estimates of useful life of the following major assets under straight-line method are as follows : 
Asset category Estimated useful life (in years) 
Buildings* 3-60 vears 
Plant and Machinery* 5-15 vears 
Furniture and Fixtures'" 3-10 years 
Electrical Eauinmcnt* 5-10 vears 
Vehicle 8 vears 
Leasehold land 30 - 99 years based on the lease period 
*Based on techmcal evaluat10n, the Company beheves that the useful hves, as given above, best represent the penod over which the Company expects to use these 
assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is diflerent from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. 

Initial direct costs incurred by the Company in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the respective investment property 
and are amortized over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income. 
On transition to Ind AS (i.e. April O I . 2016), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all Investment properties measured as per the previous 
GAAP and use that carrying value as tl1e deemed cost of Invesnnent properties. 
Pro-rata depreciation is provided on properties purchased or sold during the year. 
Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impaim1ent losses, if any. 
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are pennanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit 
is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and tl1e carrying amount oftl1e asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of 
derecognition. In detennining: the amount of consideration from the derecognition of Investment prope11ies the Company considers the effects of variable 
consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any). 

Note: Plant and machinery. furniture and fixtures and electrical equipment which are physically attached to the building are considered as part of the investment 
properties 

3.07 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes 
freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition or construction of the respective assets. The cost of such assets not ready for their 
intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress . Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impainnent losses, if any. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component ofan item or property, plant and equipment as follows : 
Asset category Estimated useful life 

(in years) 

Computers 3 years 
Upfront premium paid under lease-cum-sale agreements to acquire land where the Company has an option to purchase the land at the end of) during the lease term 
are not amortised over the lease period. 
\Vhen parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are treated as separate components and depreciated over their respective estimated 
useful lives. 
The residual values. useful lives and mctl1ods of depreciation arc reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively. 
Pro-rata depreciation is provided on all fixed assets purchased or sold during the year. 
Property. plant & equipment are de-recognized when the entity transfers control of the same to the buyer. Further the entity also derecognises property. plant & 
equipment when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of de-recognition . 
On transition to Ind AS (i.e. April 01, 2016). tl1e Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all property plant and equipment measured as per the 
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment. 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: [j64202KA1992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. mill ions unless otherwise stated ) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 
3.07 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (continued) 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are recorded at their acquisition cost. Following initial recognition. intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impainn ent losses. 

Cost of an item of intangible asse ts comprises its purchase price, including impon duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discoun ts and 
rebates, any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the fu ture economic benefi ts associated with the expenditure will now to the Company. 

The residual values, useful lives and metl1ods of amonization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate. 

Gains or losses arising from de•recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and are recognized in the statement ofprofil and loss when asset is dcrccognized. 

Right to use trademark: The earn ings potential of trade name/ trademark can at times be substantial. A trademark is recognized on a reporting Company's balance 
sheet as an intangible asset separate from goodwill because it satisfi es either of the fo llowing two tests: 

-It arises from legal rights (a trademark is essentially a bundle of rights ) 

-It is capable of being sold , transferred, and licensed separately from other assets of the acquiring company. 

CAM service rights are contract-based intangible assets, which represt!nt tht! value of contractual rights that arise from contractual arrangements. An entity 
establishes relationships with its customers through certain contracts, tl1ese customer relationships arise from contracnial rights. CAM service rights are recognised 
at their fair value as at the date of acquisition, these are subsequently am 01tised on a straight-line basis, over their estimated contractual lives. 

Amortization 

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible asse ts less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight line 
method. and is included in depreciation and amortization in 1he statement of profit and loss. 

Pro-rata am ortization is provided on intangible assets purchased or sold during the year. 

The estimated useful lives of items of intangible assets are as follows: 

Class of asset 

Software 

Right to use brand 

Management estimate 
of useful life (years) 

3 years 

5 years 

CAM service rights 5 years 

Based on technical evaluation, the Company believes that the useful lives. as given above, best represent tl1e period over which the Company expects to use these 
assets. Hence. the use ful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Pan C of Schedule II of the Companies i\ct 2013. 

3.08 Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company assesses, .i t each report ing date, whetl1er there is an indication that a non-financial asset other than in ventories and deferred tax assets may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asse t's recoverable amount. 

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-genera ting unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable 
amount. lmpainnent loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the canying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce 
the carrying amounts of the other assets of tl1e CGU on a pro-rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that are largely 
independent from other assets and groups. lmpainncnt losses arc recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it reverses previous revaluation credited to 
equity, in which case it is charged to equity. 

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset 's or CGU 's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fa ir value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. For the purpose ofimpainnent testing. assets 
that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from cont inuin g use that are largely independent 
of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. 

lmpaim1ent losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment 
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the es timates used to determine the recoverable amount . An impainn ent loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently 
reversed. In respect ofother assets. such a reversal is made only to tl1e extent that the asset' s carrying amount does not exceed tl1e carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation. if no impairm ent loss had been recognised . 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CJN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 
3.09 Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies arc translated into the respective functional currencies at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non­
monetal)' assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair 
value was detennined . Non-monela1)1 assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the 
date of the transaction. 

Exchange differences arising on forei!,'11 exchange transactions settled and from translations during the year arc recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss of the 
year except exchange differences arising from the translation of the items which are recognised in OCL 

3. IO Financial instruments 
i. Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
recognised when the Com pany becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

A financial asset or financial liahility is initially measured at fair value (except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price) plus, for an 
item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement 
Financial asset.\· 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 
- amortized cost; 
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - debt investment; 
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI) - equity invesunent; or 
- Fair value through profit and Joss (FVTPL). 

Financial assets arc not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing 
financial assets. 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost ifit meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows ; and 

- the contracmal terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow s that are solely payments of principal and interes t on the principal amount 
outstanding. 
A debt investment is measured at FVOCJ ifit meets both oftl1e following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL: 
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets ; and 
- the contractual tcnns of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow s that arc solely payments of the principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 
On initial recognition ofan equity investment tltat is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment' s fair 
value in OCJ (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investm ent basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FYOCJ as described above are measured at FVTPL. TI1is includes all derivative financial assets. 
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at 
FVOCl as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would othcnvisc arise. 

Fimmc:ia/ assets: B11si11ess model asscss111e11t 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the 
business is managed and information is provided to management. 1l1e information considered includes: 

- the slated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of tl1ose policies in practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on 
earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related 
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

- how the perfonnance o f the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company' s management; 

- tl1e ri sks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed ; 

~ how managers of lhe business are compensated - e.g. whether compensaLion is based on lhe fair value of the assets managed or the conu·actual cash flow s 
collected and; 

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for dereCO!,'llition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the 
Company's continuing recognition of the assets. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: Ll64202KAI992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(a ll amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise s1a1ed) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 
3.10 Financial instruments (continued) 

Financial ttssets: Asse,\·J111e11t whether co11tractua/ cr1shjlows are .wle(v payments of principal um/ interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, ·principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ' Interest' is defined as consideration for tl1e 
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particu lar period of time and for other basic lending risks and 
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs).as well as a profit margin . 
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instmment. This 
includes assessing whether the fi nancial asset contains a contractual tenn that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash tlows such that it would not 
meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows: 

- tenns that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; 
- prepayment and extension features; and 

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows fiom specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features) 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. 
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that pennits or requires prepayment at an 
amount that substantially represents tl1e contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional 
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fa ir value of the prepayment feature is insib'ltificant at initial recognition. 

Fimmdal ,1ssets: S11bseque11t measuremeut am/ gains am/ lusj·e,\· 

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are 
recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial assets at amortized cost 

Debt investments at FVOCI 

Equity investments at FVOCJ 

These assets arc subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is 
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, fore ign exchange gains and losses and impairment arc recognised in profit 
or loss. Any gain or loss on derccognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method. foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impainnent are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in 
OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the 
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in 
OCI and are not reclassi fied to profit or loss. 

Fi11a11ciul liabilities: C!a.fsijiclltio11, subsequent measurement am/ gains lllld losses 

Financial liabili ties arc classified as measured at amort ized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is 
a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair va lue and net gains and losses, including any interest 
expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense 
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecogni tion is also recognised in profit or loss. 

iii. Derecugnition 
Fi11a11cia/ assets 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the 
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized. 

Fi11t1nl·ial liuhililies 
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. 
The Company also derecognizes a financial liabili ty when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this 
case, a new financial liability based on the modified tenns is recognised at fai r va lue. The difference between the carrying amount of the financi al liability 
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. 

iv. Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabi lities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, tl1e Company currently has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and senle the liability sim ultaneously. 
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CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 
3.11 Impairment of financial assets 

Financial asst'/s 
TI1e Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and 
• financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities at fVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset 
is ·credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data: 
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer: or 
- a breach of contract snch as a default or being p.ist due for 180 days or more: or 
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that in the material assessment of the Company it would not consider otherwise; or 

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties 
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected 
credit losses: 

- debt securities that are detennined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and 
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit ri sk (i.e. tl,c risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition. 
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possib le default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

I 2-montl1 expected credit losses are tl1e portion of expected credit losses tliat result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date 
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). 

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to 
credit risk. 
\Vhen determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the 
Company considers reasonable and supportable infonnation tliat is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and 
qualitative information and analysis. based on the Company's historical experience and infonned credit assessment and including forward-looking infonnation. 

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly ifit is more than 180 days past due. 
The Company considers a financial asset to be default when: 
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to tl1e Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held): 
or 

- the financial asset is 180 days or more past due without any security 
Afemmrement of expecte<l credit losses: Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value 
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

Presentation ofc,l/ow{llll'efor expected credit losses in the balalll'e sheet: Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the 
gross canying amount of the assets. For deht securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit and loss account and is recognised in OCL 

Write-off: The gross carrying amount ofa financial asset is written off(either partially or in full) to the extent that tl1ere is no realistic prospect of recovery. ll1is is 
generally the case when the Company detennines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the 
amounts subject to write-off However, financial assets that arc written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's 
procedures for recovery of amounts due. 
Majority of the financial assets of the Company pertain to trade and otJ1er receivables. Considering the nature of business, the Company does not foresee any credit 
ri sk on its trade and other receivables which may cause an impaim1ent. As per the agreement with tenants, the receivables are covered by clause of payment 
security mechanism which ensures receipt of all trade receivables. Also, the Company does not have any past history of significant impairment of trade and other 
receivables. 

3.12 Financial guarantee contracts 
Financial guarantee contracts arc recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and 
subsequently at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS I 09 and the amount recognised less, when 
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115. 
TI1e fair value of financial guarantees is detennined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual payments under the debt 
instrument and tl1e payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming tl1e 
obligations. 
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Vik:.ls Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 
3.13 Leases 

Company as a lessee 
A contract is , or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease tenn at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right• 
of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount oftl1e initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any lease pai1nents made at or before 
the commencement date, less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the costs to be incurred by the lessee in 
dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. 

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impainnent losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement 
of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease tenn or useful life 
of right-of-use asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impaimient whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairntent 
loss. if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at tl1e commencement date, discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily detennined, the incremental bon-owing rate applicable to the Company. Generally. the Company uses its 
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. For leases with reasonably simi lar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt ei ther the 
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. 

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of­
use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re­
measurement in the statement of profit and loss. 

Thi:: Company has dected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shorHerm leases of all assets that have a lease te rm of 12 months or less and 
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Company as a lessor 
I . Determining whether an arrangement c.:untains a lease 

At inception ofan arrangement, it is detennined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a 
lease, the payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If 
it is concluded for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair 
value of the underlying asset. l11c liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is rccob'lliscd using the incremental 
borrowing rate. 

ii. Assds held under lc:ases 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Leases are 
classified as financ e leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under 
finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the non­
cancellable period oflease term. 

iii. Initial direct costs 

Initial direct costs such as brokerage expenses incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating lease are capitalised to the canying amount of leased asset 
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

3.14 Revenue recognition 
i) Rental income from investment properties 

Rental income from property leased under operating lease is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the non-cancell.ible period of 
the lease tenn. Lease incentives granted are recot,'11ised as an integral part of the total rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 
which they are earned on a receipt basis. 

ii) Income from finance lease 
For assets let out under finance lease, the Company recognises a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Rentals received are accounted for 
as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases are apportioned between the finance income and the 
reduction of the outstanding receivable. The finance income allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining net investment in the finance lease. Contingent rt:nts are recorded as income in the periods in which they are t!amec.l. 

iii) ReYenue from contract with customers 
Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that 
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes 
offered by the Company as part of the contract. 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
considerntion to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and tl1e amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

a) Revenue from maintenance services is recognised as and when the services are rendered based on the terms of the contracts with the lessees. 
b) Other operating income is recognised when the services are rendered and the same become chargeable. Revenue from other services is recognised on accrual basis 

as per the terms of the agreement. 
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3 Material accounting policies (continued) 
3.15 Recognition of dividend and interest income 

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is established. 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method . The ' effective interest rate ' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts U1rough 
the expected hfe of the financial mstrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. 
In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit•impaired). However, for 
financial assets that have become credit•impaired subsequent to initial recogni tion, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the 
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit•impaired, then the calculntion of interest income reverts to the gross basis. 

3. I 6 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction 
ofa qualifying asset form part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ·effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financia l liability. In calculating interest expense, the effective interest rate is 
applied to the amortised cost of the liability. 

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the general borrowings . 
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased 
when substantially all tl1e activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. 

3.17 Taxation 
Incomc•tax comprises of Current Tax and deterred tax. It is recognised to profit and loss account except to the extent an item recognised directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income. 

Current tax 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in 
respect of previous years. l11e amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if 
any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise tl1e asset and settle 
the liability on a net basis or sim ul taneously. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of tempora1y differences between the canying amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial repmting purposes and the 
corresponding amounts used for tax,1tion purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forwnrd tax losses nnd tax credits. 

Deferred income tax asset are recognised to the extent that it is probable tliat future taxable profits will be available against which tl1ey can be used. The existence 
of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore. in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a 
dt:forred tax asset only to tht: t:xtent that it has sufficient taxable temporary difft:rt:nces or tht:re is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. 
Deferred tax nssets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are reco&,'llised /reduced to the extent that it is probablemo lon ger probable 
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
Deferred tax is measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws tliat have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover 
or settle the canying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by 
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to se ttle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax 
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 
Minimum Alternative Tax 
Minimum Alternative Tax I' MAT') under the provisions of the Income Tax, 1961 is recob'Tlised as current tax in the statement of Profit and Loss. The credit 
available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when aud to die extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay nonnal 
income tax during the period for which MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and written down to tl1e extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists. 



Vilrns Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise slated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 
3.18 Provisions and contingencies 

1l1c Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofa past obligating event that probably requires an outflow 
of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation 
or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation tl1a1 the 
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the conuact exceed the economic benefits 
c,pected to be received under it. are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present 
obligation as a result ofan obligating event, based on a reliahle estimate of such obligation . 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted. 

3.19 Segment reporting 
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 ~ "Segment Reporting", the Company is primarily engaged in the business of development, maintenance and 
lease of office space and related interiors and has no other primary reportable segments. The Board of Directors of the Company allocate the resources and assess 
the pcrfonnance of the Company, thus arc the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODl\·I) . The CODM monitors the operating results of the business as a single 
segment, hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed. 11ms the segment revenue, segment result, total carrying amount of SCb'tnent assets, total carrying 
amount of segment liabilities. total cost incurred to acquire segments assets, the total amount of charge for depreciation and amortisation during the year are all as 
reflected in the financial statements. As the Company operates in India alone, no separate geographical segment is disclosed. 

3.20 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand, deposits held at call with bank or financial inst itutions. other shorHerm, 
highly liquid invesunents wilh original maturities of three monU1s or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subjecl to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cashtlow. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents, as defined above, net of outstanding book overdrafts 
as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

3.21 Distribution policy 
Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Embassy Office Parks REIT is required to distribute to the Unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net 
distributable cash flows ( ' NDCF') of Embassy Office Parks REIT. The NDCF was calculated in accordance with the REIT Regulations and in the manner provided 
in the NDCF framework defined by the Manager. The Manager had made certain clarificatory amendments to the NDCF framework under the Distribution Policy 
to ensure that there is no ambiguity in computing the NDCF at Embassy REIT and SPV/Holdco level. The amended framework was approved by a special majority 
in the Unitholdcr's Meeting held on 8 July 2021 and was effective from I April 2021 . 
In order to promote standardisation of framework for computing NDCF, a revised framework is defined by SEBI vide master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/43 dated 15 May 2024 . This framework is applicable with effect from 1 April 2024. Accordingly, Embassy Office Parks REIT has computed the 
NDCF for the year ended 31 March 2025 to comply with the said circular. Comparatives have not been provided in tl1is framework for all the previous periods 
presented. In accordance with this circular, Embassy Office Parks REIT along witl1 its SPVs, subject to applicable provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 , needs to 
ensure that minimum 90% distribution ofNDCF be met for a given financial year on a cumulative pc:riodic basis. 
The aforesaid net distributable cash flows are made available to Embassy Office Parks REIT in the fom1 of (i) Interest paid on Shareholder Debt provided by 
Embassy Office Parks REIT to the SPV's/Holding Company, (ii) Principal repayment of Shareholder Debt, (iii) Dividend declared by the SPVs/Holding Company 
and (iv) Proceeds from sale of anv Embassy REIT assets. 

3.22 Statement of cash flow 
Cash flows are reponed using indirect method. whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating (operating activities), investing and financing activities of the 
Company are segregated. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shon-term deposits, as defined above, as tl1ey are considered an 
integral part of the Company's cash management. 

3.23 Earnings per share 
The basic earnings/(loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to owner's of the Company for the year by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period. 

The number of shares used in computing diluted eamings/(loss) per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings/ (loss ) per 
share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on tl1e conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reponing date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing diluted 
earnings per share. only potential equity shares that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per share are included. 

3.24 Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation and tax 
The Company has elected to present earnings before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation and tax as a separate line item on the face of the statement of Profit 
and Loss. The Company measures earnings before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation and tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its 
measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortisation expense, finance cost and tax expense. 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202 KA 1992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Ma rch 2025 
(all amounts in Rs . million unless otherwise stated} 

4 A Property, plant and equipment 
Reconciliation of carrying amount for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Particulars 

Gross Block (cost or deemed cost}: 
As at I April 2023 
Additions 
Disoosals 
As al 31 March 2024 

As at I Apri l 2024 

Additions 

Disposals 

As :ti 31 March 2025 

Accumulated depreciation 
As at I Apri l 2023 
Charge for the year 
Disoosals 
As at 31 March 2024 

As at I April 2024 
Charge for tl1e year 
Di soosals 
As :tt 31 Ma rch 2025 

Carrvin!! amounts tnct): 
As at 31 March 2025 
As at 31 March 2024 

(i) Refer note 17 for information on die charge created. 
(ii} Refer note 3-l for disclosure of contractual comminnents for the acquisi tion of Property, plant and equipment. 

(th is space 1s 111te1111onally left h/ankJ 
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Computers Land Total 

6. 10 16.92 23 02 
- -
-

6.10 16.92 23.02 

6.10 16.92 23.02 

- - -
- -

6.10 16.92 23.02 

5.57 5.57 
0.-l2 0.42 
- - -

5.99 - 5.99 

5.99 5.99 
0 .11 - 0.11 

- -
6.10 - 6.10 

- 16.92 16.92 
0.11 16.92 17.03 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(a ll amounts in Rs. mill ion unless otherwise stated) 

4 B Capital work-in-pro~rcss (CW IP) 

Particulars 

Hotel and con vent ion centre 

Total 

Capital work-in-pr 

Status 

As at 31 March 2025 

Projects in progress 
Projects tem porarily suspended 

As at 31 March 2024 
Projects in progress 
Proj ect.s temporarily suspended 

Borrowing cost capitHli sed 

schedule 

Less than 1 year 

1,615 .24 

883 .14 

As at As at 
3 I March 2025 31 March 2024 

3,100.54 1,485.30 

3,100.54 1,485.30 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 
Total 

I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 yc;1rs 

883. 14 295.63 306.53 3,100.54 

295 .63 75 .67 231LR6 1,485.30 

i) Additions to Capital work in progress include borrowing cost amounting to Rs. 183.70 million for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 : Rs 97.53 mill ion) on the basis of capitalisation rate on Weighted average 
borrowing cost (\V ABC) at 8.09% p.a. (31 March 2024: 8. 18% p.a.) 

ii) As on 3 1 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. there are no capital work-in-progress projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded lhe cost. based on original approved plan. 

Movement of capital work-in-progress 
Particulars 

Opening balance 
Add - Additions to Capital work in progress during the year 
Less - Capitalisation to Property, plant & equipment during the year 
Closin balance 

Page 16 

As at 
31 March 2025 

1,485.30 
1,6 15.24 

3 100.54 

As at 
31 March 2024 

602.16 
883. 14 

I 485.30 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202K..\1992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

5 Investment properties 
Reconciliation of carrvini, amount for the vear ended 31 March ?025 -

Plant and 
Particulars Building 

l\lachinery 

Gross Block (cost or deemed cost): 
As at I April 2023 22,71 8.39 4,631.63 
Additions 622.63 289.33 
Disnosals -
As at 31 March 2024 23,341.02 4,920.96 
As at I April 2024 23 ,341.02 4,920 .96 
Additions 8,494.12 2,507.06 

Disoosals - -
As at 31 March 2025 31,835.14 7,428.03 
Accumulated depreciation 
As at I April 2023 3,734.44 1,471.17 
Charge for the year 656.18 278 .64 
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2024 4,390.62 1,749.81 
As at I April 2024 4,390.62 1,749.81 
Charge for the year 549. 22 448.06 

Disoosals . . 

As at 31 March 2025 4,939.85 2,197.88 

Carrvini, amounts (net): 
As at 31 March 2025 26,895.29 5,230.15 
As at 31 March 2024 18,950.40 3,171.15 

Furniture and 
Vehicle 

Fixtures 

465.46 
4.90 

470,36 
470.36 

1.76 

-
472.ll 

296.57 
63.86 

. 
360.43 
360.43 

35.23 
. 

395.66 

76.45 
109.93 

Electrical Total 
Land (refer note (ii)) 

Freehold Leasehold Equipment (A) 
(B) (Cl 

- 327.55 28 ,14303 396 05 113.00 
0.61 44.91 962.38 50.13 
-

0,61 372.46 29,105.41 446,18 113.00 
0.61 372.46 29,105.41 446.18 113.00 

1,262.42 12,265.36 - -
- - - - -

0.61 1,634.89 41,370.78 446.18 ll3.00 

- 126.12 5,628.30 -
O.o4 35.83 1,034.55 
. . 

0.04 161.95 6,662.85 . . 

0.04 161 .95 6,662.85 . 

0.08 72.22 1,104.81 . . 
. . . . . 

0.12 234.18 7,767.66 . . 

0.49 1,400.71 33,603.11 446.18 113.00 
0.57 210.51 22,442.56 446.18 II3.00 

i)The above owned assets held as 111vestn11!nt properties have been kased out to lessees / held for lease on operating lease basis. Refer note no 36 for details of operating lease. 

Grand Total 
(A+ B+ C) 

28,652.08 
1,012.51 

-
29,664.59 
29,664 .59 
12,265.36 

-
41,929.95 

5,628.30 
1,034.55 

. 

6,662.85 
6,662.85 
1,104.81 

. 

7,767.66 

34,162.29 
23,001.74 

ii) Kamataka Industrial Area Development Board ("KIADB"J executed lease cum sale agreements in favour oftl1e Company with respect to 103 acres I '/4 guntas ("Larger Lane!") in Devarabeesanahalli Village ("ETV Project"). 
Subsequently, sale deeds with respect to IOI acres 4 ¼ guntas was executed in favour of the Company and balance land measuring I acre 37 guntas continues to remain leased in favour of the Company. In addition to the Larger 
Extent, the Company has acquired survey number 9/4 measuring I acre 9 guntas (including 3 guntas kharab land) from private parties in 2004 and this land is located within the ETV Project. This additional land was originally 
under BBMP jurisdiction and subsequently in 2024, through approval by Karnataka Udyoga Mitra. tl1e Company has been granted pem1ission to integrate and obtain a single mixed use development plan from KIADB for ETV 
including tl1is additional land. Pursuant to the approval obtained tluough Karnataka Udyog Mitra, the Company has applied for and obtained a modified development plan for ETV from KIADB which includes survey number 
9/4. The Company has stated that it would invest Rs.1.000 million. which has been subsumed within the overall ETV Project cost approved by the Board. The Company has leased out 19.34 acres of the land to Embassy 
Commercial Projects (Whitefield) Private Limited and is developing the remainmg land along witl1 Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited . 

iii) Plant and Machinery. Furniture and Fixtures and Electrical Equipment are physically attached to the Buildings and are an integral part ofit, therefore, they are considered as a part of investment properties. 
iv) Investment properties comprises a commercial building and other assets forming part of building, that is leased to third parties. 111c license agreement entered with tenants may or may not contain an initial non-cancellable 
period . Subsequent renewals of these license agreements are negotiated with the tenants and historically the average renewal period ranges between three and five years. 

v) Refer note 17 and 40 for infonnation on the charge created. The above investment properties have been provided as security to its holding entity for the Non-conve11ible debentures issued. 
vi) Refer note 34 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of Investment properties. 
vii) Additions to investment properties and investment properties under development include borrowing cost amounting to Rs.622.29 million (31 March 2024: Rs.469.57 million) on the basis of capitalisation rate on Weighted 
average borrowing cost (W ABC) at 8.07% p.a. (31 March 2024: 8.58% p.a.). 
viii) All immovable properties (Except Leasehold Land) are held in the name oftl1e Company as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. 

Page 17 



Vikas Telecom Pri\'ate Limited 
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Notes to the financi a l statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

5 Investment Properties (continued) 

Amounts rccmrniscd in statement of profit and loss for in\'estment properties 
Particulars 

Rental income 

Less: Direct operating expenses from investment properties that generated rental income 
(including repairs and maintenance). 

Less : Direct operating expenses from investment properti es that did not generating renta l income 
(including repairs and maintenance). 

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation, amortization and indirect 
exoenses 
Less: Depreciation and amortisation exoense 
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 

Determination of fair values 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

7,386.67 6,975.95 

(6 13.58) (590 32) 

(331.21) (307.93) 

6,441.88 6,077.70 

(2,024.81) (1.95-US) 
4,41 7.07 4,123.15 

The fair value of investment property as al 3 1 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 has been determined by a independent registered va luer as defined under 
rule 2 of Companies (Re1,~stered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 20 17. having appropriately reco1,'Il ised professional qualifications and recent experience 
in the location and category of the properties being va lued 

The independent external professional property va luers have considered va luation technique discounted cash flows in arriving at the fair value as at the 
reporting date. These valuation methods involve certain es timates. The managemc.:::nt has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the valuation 
methods and es tim ates arc reflective of the current market condi tions. 

The discounted cash flow s method involves the estimation of an income stream over a period and discounting the income stream with an expected 
internal rate of return and terminal yield . The valuation model considers the present va lue of net cash flows to be generated from the property, taking into 
account the expected rental b'Towth rate. vacant periods. occupancy rate, lease incentive costs such as rent-tree periods and other costs not paid by 
tenants. TI1e expected cash flows are discounted using risk-adjusted discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimation considers the 
quality of a building and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality and lease te,m s. 
All resulting fair va lue estimates for in vestment properties are included in level 3. 

Fair values 

Particulars Amount 

Fair Value at 3 1 March 2025 11 8,878 
Fair Value at 31 March 2024 107,377 

(this space 1s i11 te11tio11allv left h/ank) 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

6 Investment properties under development (IPUD) 

Investment properties under development comprises of upcom ing buildings and infrastructural upgrades m Embassy Tech Village. 
The building/block wise details is as follows· 

Particulars 

Block 8 office 
Master plan upgrades and others 

i. Investment properties under development ageing 
Status 

As at 31 March 2025 
Projects in progress 

Projects temporari ly suspended 

As at 31 March 2024 
Projects in proi,'fess 
Proj ects temporarily suspended 

Less than 1 vear 

306.82 

4, 188.60 

Amount in IPUD for a period of 
I - 2 vears 2 - 3 vears 

154.20 124 .14 

1,722.67 -156.51 

As at As at 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

6,065 .84 
585.16 654.96 
585.16 6,720.80 

Total 
More than 3 vears 

585.16 

353.02 6,720.80 

ii. As on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 20:!4, tl1ere are no IPUD projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded tl1e cost, based on 
originally approved plan . 

iii . Movement of investment properties under development (IPUD) 
Particulars 

Opening balance 

Add - Additions to Investment properties under development during tlte year 
Less • Capitalisation to Investment properties during the year 
Closing balance 

7 Intangible assets 

Reconciliation of canying amount for tl1e year ended 31 March 2075 -

Particulars 
Computer 
software 

Gross Block(cost or deemed cost): 

As at I April 2023 6.88 
Additions 
Disoosals -
As at 31 March 2024 6.88 

As at I April 2024 6.88 
Additions -
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2025 6.88 

Accumulated amortization 

As at I April 2023 6.88 
Amortization for the year 
As at 31 March 2024 6.88 

As at I April 2024 6.88 
Amortization for the year -
As at 31 March 2025 6.88 
Carrying amounts (net) : 
As at 31 March 2025 -
As at 31 March 2024 -
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Right to use 
brand 

891.20 

891.20 

891.20 

-
891.20 

891.20 

891.20 

891.20 

891.20 

-
-

As at 
31 March 2025 

6,720.80 

5,799.76 
( 11 ,935.4 I J 

585.16 

CAM Service 
Rights 

4,600.00 
-

4,600.00 

4,600.00 

4,600.00 

2, 146.67 
920.00 

3,066.67 

3,066.67 
920.00 

3,986.67 

613.33 
1,533.33 

As at 
31 March 2024 

2,987 .16 

4,525.50 
(791.86) 

6,720.80 

Total 

5,498.08 
-
-

5,498.08 

5,498.08 
-
-

5,498.08 

3,044 .75 
920.00 

3,964.75 

3,964.75 
920 .00 

-l,884.75 

613.33 
1,533.33 
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CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(a ll amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

8 Other non-current financial assets 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Banks deposi ts with maturity more than 12 months (refer note A below) 
Finance lease ret.:eivable (n:fer note 37) 
Unbilled revenue 
Security deposits 

- to others 

Note A: 
Fixed deposits pledged against Bank loans 

9 Non-current tax assets (net) 

Particula rs 

Advance tax, ne t of provision for tax 

t O Other non-current assets 

Unsecured considered good 
Capital advances 

- to related parties (refer note 40) 
- to others 

Paid under protest to government authorities 

11 Trade recei\·ables 

Particulars 

Trade receivables 
U11securetl 
Considered good 

- re lated parties (refer note ~0 ) 
- others 
Credit impaired 
Less: Allowances for impairment losses 

Asat As at 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

336.5 1 74 .20 
14.35 

1.245.47 853 .65 

203.44 152.80 
1,785.42 1,095.00 

3 14.20 74.20 

As at As at 
3 I March 2025 31 March 2024 

11.12 61.34 

11.12 61.34 

As at As at 
31 March 2025 31 1\1 arch 2024 

29.87 17.14 
473 .70 688.04 

14.99 2.88 
518.56 708.06 

As at As at 
31 March 2025 31 1\1 arch 2024 

2.24 0.30 

51.81 3 1.1 7 

54.05 31.47 

a. The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, trade recei\"ables ageing schedule based on requirement of Schedule III and loss allowances related to trade 
receivables is disclosed in Note 41 

b. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable 
are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner. a director or a member. 

12 Cash and cash e uivalcnts 

Particulars 

Balances with banks 
~ in current accounts* 
- in escrow accounts 

As at 
31 March 2025 

844 .94 
7.06 

852.00 

*Balance in current accounts includes cheques on hand as at 31 March 2025 amounting to Rs. 40 1.00 million (3 l March 2024: Nil ). 

13 Other current financial assets 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Finance lease receivable (refer note 37) 
Unbilled revenue 
Unbilled maintenance charges 
Secw-ity deposits 

- to relaled parties (refer note 40} 

14 Other current assets 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 

- to related parties (refer note ➔0 ) 

- to others 
Balances with government authorities 
Pre ayments 
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As at 
31 March 2025 

14.35 
56.47 
6 1.00 

105.00 
236.82 

As at 
31 March 2025 

10.87 
30.21 

548.54 
6.62 

596.24 

As at 
31 March 2024 

0.06 
0.06 

As at 
31 l\farch 2024 

31.4 1 
192.23 
7451 

l05.00 
403.15 

As at 

J 1 l\larch 2024 

54.75 
5.8 1 

174.42 
8.94 

243.92 
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CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

15 E ui • share ca ital 
Particulars As at As at 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
Authorised capital 
64,000,000 (3 1 March 2024: 64,000,000) equity shares of Rs. IO each 640.00 640 .00 
50,000 (31 March 2024: 50,000) redeemable preference shares of Rs. IO each 0.50 0.50 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 
6,515,036 (31 March 2024: 6,515,036) equity shares of Rs. IO each 65.15 65 .15 

65.15 65.15 

A Equity shares 
a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year is as given below: 

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 
:"lo. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 6,515,036 65.15 6,515 ,036 65.15 
Add: Movement during the ~ear 
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the :rear 6,515,036 65.15 6,515,036 65.15 

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares: 
Each holder of equity share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each 
share held for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholder's meeting. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing General Meeting except interim dividend. In the event of 
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of tl1e Company after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts existed as at the balance sheet date. 'fbe distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders. 

c) Equitv shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Company: 
Name of the Promoter ---~·~,\~s ~a~t _3~1 ~M~a~r~c~h~2~0~2~5 _________ A~s~a~t_3_1~M~a_rc~h_20_2_4 ____ _ 

% of holding No. of shares % of holding No, of shares 
Embassy Office Parks REIT' 100.00% 6,515,036 100.00% 6,515,036 

100.00% 6 515 036 100,00% 6 515 036 
* I equity share is held by an individual where the beneficial interest lies with Embassy Office Parks REIT. 

d) Buyback of shares and shares allotted by way of bonus shares: 

B 

The Company has not made any buy~back, nor there has been an issue of shares by way of bonus share nor issue of shares pursuant to contract without 
payment being received I paid in cash for the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. 

Shareholding of Promoters 
As at 31 March 2025 
Name of the Promoter Shares held bv Promoters % Change during the 

No. of shares as at % of total shares No. of shares as % of tofal shares year ended 
31 March 2025 as at 31 March 2025 at 1 April 2024 as at I April 2024 31 March 2025 

Embassy Office Parks REIT 6,515,036 100.00% 6,515,036 100.00% 0.00% 
Total 6515036 100,00°/., 6515036 100.00% 0.00% 

As at 31 March 2024 
Name of the Promoter Shares held by Promoters % Change during the 

No. of shares as at % of total shares No. of shares as % of total shares year ended 
31 :Vlarch 2024 as at 31 March 2024 at I April 2023 as at 1 April 2023 31 March 2024 

Em bass~ Office Parks REIT 6,515,036 100.00% 6,515,036 100.00% 0.00°1c 
Total 6 515 036 100.00% 6 515 036 100,00% 0.00% 
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I 6 Other e uitv 
Particulars 

Reserves and surplus 

(i) Other reserves 
General resen'c 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Movement during the year 
Balance as at the end of the year 

(ii) Retained earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 
Less: Transfer to debenture redemption reserves 
Less: Interim dividend paid on equity shares 
[Rs.232.55 per share i 31 March 2024: NIL)) 
Balance as at the end of the year 

(iii) Equity portion of optionally convertible debentures 

(iv) Equity portion of compulsorily convertible debentures 

(v) Capital reserve 
Balance at tl1e beginning of the year 
Movement during the year 
Ba lance as at the end of the year 

(vi) Debenture redemption reserves 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Additions during tl1e year 
Balance as at the end of the year 

Nature and purpose of other reserves: 

General reserve 

As at 
31 March 2025 

50.00 

50.00 

545.56 
1,546.89 

(1,5 15.07) 

577.38 

1,575.09 

2,152.59 

(6,833. 16) 

(6,833.16) 

495.00 

495.00 

1 983.08 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

50.00 

50.00 

796.36 
(250.80) 

545.56 

1,575.09 

2,152.59 

(6,833 16) 

(6,833.16) 

244.20 
250.80 
495.00 

2 014.92 

This represents transfer of dt:benture redemption n:serve 011 redemption of debentures. The reserve;:: can be utilised in accordance with the specific requirements of 
Companies Act, 2013 

Retained earnings 
The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings. 
At the end of tlie year, total comprehensive income/(loss) in the year after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained earnings. 

Equity portion of optionally convertible redeemable debentures 
It represents the equity component arising on fair valuation of the debentures as required under Ind AS I 09. 

Equity portion of compulsory convertible debentures 
It represents the equity component arising on fair valuation of the debentures as required under Ind AS 109. 

Capital reserve 
During year ended March 31, 202 1 tl1e Company had entered into a restructuring scheme of arrangement with Embassy Real Estate Developments and Services 
Private Limited , ("Demerger Company") for transfer of certain assets and liabilities at agreed values for a consideration which will be settled by issuance of 
Redeemable Preference shares ("RPS"). 

The scheme was subsequently approved by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") vide order no CP (CAA) No 43/BB/2020 dated 1 December 2020 
upon which tl1e same shall be effective. 

The excess of the consideration over tl1e net book value of assets less liabilities is adjusted in Capital Reserve. 
The balance Capita l Reserve represents resultant capital reserve on account of scheme of arrangement. 

Debenture redemption reserve 
Company has issued Non-Convertible Debentures during the year ended 31 March 2023 and as per tl1e provisions of the Companies Act, 20 I 3, Company is 
required to creale debenture redemption reserve out oflhe profits available for payment of dividend . 

Distribution made durin° the vear: 
Particulars 

Cash dividend on equity shares declared and paid 
Interim dividend 
(Rs.232.55 per share for the year ended 3 1 March 2025) 
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17 Non-current borrowin s 
Particulars 

Secured 
Terms loans 

- from banks ( Refernote A) 
Debentures (Refer note .-\) 
Overdraft 

- from banks (Refer note A) (refer note 40) 

Unsecured 
Loan from related parties (Refer note B) 

As at 
31 March 2025 

I 0,869.33 

492.48 

3,290.14 

14 651.95 

A) Details of security, repa:yment and interest on term loans from banks (including current maturities of non-current borrowings): 
(i) Term loan from HSBC Bauk as at 31 March 2025: Rs. 5,207.64 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 5,199.45 million ). The loan is secured by:-

As at 
31 March 2024 

13,929.58 
4,945.10 

1,272.16 

12,198.94 

32 345.78 

a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy Tech 
Village, Bengaluru. 

b) First charge by way ofhypothecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy Tech Village, Bengaluru. 
c) A debt service reserve account with l months equivalent of ensuing repayment obligations in fonn of interest bearing deposit. 
d) Repayment and interest terms As at 

31 March 2025 

From Bank 
Repayable in structured monthly instalments with no moratorium 5,107.64 

HSBC Bank facility interest rate of IM T-Bill rate + applicable spread, currently 7.86% p.a. 

(ii) Term loans from HSBC Bank as at 31 March 2025: Rs. 1,999.28 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 1,997.89 million). The loan is secured by:-

As at 
31 March 2024 

5,199.45 

a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy Tech 
Village, Bengaluru. 

b) First charge by way ofhypothecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy Tech Village, Bengaluru. 

c) A debt service reserve account witl1 I months equivalent of ensuing repayment obligations in form of interest bearing deposit. 
d) Repayment and interest terms 

From Bank 
Repayable as bullet payment on 29 October 2025. 
Each tranche carries an interest rate of IM T-Bill rate as applicable on date of drawdown + applicable spread, average 
rate being 7.86% p.a 

As at 
31 March 2025 

1,999.28 

(iii) Term loans from ICICI Bank as at 31 March 2025: Rs. 1949,87 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 2,953.52 million). The loan is secured by:-

As at 
3 I March 2024 

1,997.89 

a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy Tech 
Village, Bengaluru. 

b) First charge by way ofhypothecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy Tech Village, Bengaluru. 
c) Repayment and interest terms 

From Bank 
Repayable in 36 monthly instalments wiU1 Nil moratorium, from the date of drawdown. * 
The loan carried an interest rate of 3 month MCLR plus applicable spread 

Repayable in 36 montl1ly instalments with Nil moratorium, from tl1e date of drawdown. 
The loan canies an mterest rate of I montl1 MCLR plus applicable spread, currently 8.50% p.a. 

* The loan was foreclosed as on 18 September 2024 
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As at 
3 I March 2025 

1,949.87 

As at 
3 I March 2024 

983 .94 

1,969.58 
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17 Non-current borrowings (continued) 
(iv) Term loans from HSBC Bank as at 31 March 2025: Rs. 6,665.00 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 3,808.33 million ). The loan is secured by:-

a) First charge by way of mortgage on land admeasuring 12.29 acres and building being constructed thereon identified as Blocks SA, 8A-(MLCP). SB. SC & 8D 
along with hotel having an agb,regate leasable area of 18,39, 717 sq . ft situated at Embassy Tech Village, Bengaluru. 

b) First charge by way ofhypothccation of current assets and receivables pertaining to the mortgaged property at situated at Embassy Tech Village, Bcngaluru 
c) Keepwell Undertaking from Embassy Office Parks REIT. 
d) Repayment and interest terms 

From Bank 
Repayable by way of a single bullet repayment at the end of 30th month from date of first disbursement i.e. 26 
December 2025 . Each tranche carries interest of I month Thill t- applicable spread. average rate being 8. 15% p.a. 

As at 
31 March 2025 

6,665.00 

(v) Term loans from HSBC Bank as at 3 1 March 2025: Rs. 1,628.33 million (31 March 2024: Rs. NIL). The loan is secured hy:-

As at 
31 M:irch 2024 

3.808 33 

a) First ranking pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy 
Tech Village, Bengaluru. 

b) First rankine pari passu charge bv way of hypotl1ecation of tl1e receivables of tl1e above Buildings of Embassy Tech Village. Bengaluru. 
c) Repayment and interest terms As at 

From Bank 
Repayable as bullet payment on 17 September 2027. Each tranche carries an interest rate of IM T-Bill rate as 
applicable on date of drawdown , applicable spread, average rate being 7.86% p.a 

31 March 2025 

1,628.33 

(vi) Term loans from DBS Bank as at 31 March 2025: Rs. 1,998.56 million (31 March 2024: Rs. NIL), The loan is secured by:-

As at 
31 March 2024 

a) First ranking pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy 
Tech Village. Bengaluru. 

b) First ranking pan passu charge by way of hypotl1ecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy Tech Village. Bengaluru. 
c) Repayment and interest terms As at 

From Bank 
Repayable in 3 annual in stalments with Nil moratorium, from the date of drawdown. Each tranche carries an interest 
rate of3 Month MIBOR 01S plus applicable spread, average rate being 7.86% p.a 

31 March 2025 

1.998.56 

(vii) Term loans from SB! Bank as at 31 March 2025: Rs. 1,975.66 million (31 March 2024: Rs. NIL). The loan is secured by:-

As al 
31 March 2024 

a) First ranking pari passu charge by way of mortgage on the constructed buildings and related parcels identified as Block 2 having an aggregate leasable area of 
I 9, 15,325 square feet and forming part of the development known as Embassy Tech Village together with portion of land admeasuring 12.93 acres on which the 
aforesaid buildings are constructed . 

b) First ranking pari passu charge by way ofhypothecation of the receivables from Block 2 of Embassy Tech Village, Bengaluru. 
c) Repayment and interest terms As al 

From Bank 
Repayable in 180 monthly instalments from the date of drawdown. with NIL moratorium. ·rhe debt carries an interest 
rate of 3M T-Bi ll plus applicable spread, currently 8.33 % p.a 

31 March 2025 

1,975.66 

(viii) Term loans from Canara Bank as at 31 March 2025: Rs. 5,6!0.68 million (31 March 2024: Rs. NIL). The loan is secured by:-

As at 
31 March 2024 

a) First ranking exclusive charge by way ofmongage on the constructed buildings and related parcels identified as Block 7B- Primrose having an aggregate leasable 
area of 9, 11,003 square feet and fanning pan of the development known as Embassy Tech Village togetl1er witl1 portion of land admeasuring 5.38 acres on which 
tl1e aforesaid buildings arc constructed 

b) 2. First ranking exclusive charge over current assets and receivables pertaining to Block 7B- Primrose of Embassy Tech Village. Bengaluru. 
c) Repayment and interest terms As at 

From Bank 
Repayable in 120 monthly instalments from the date of drawdown. with NIL moratorium . The debt carries an interest 
rate ofRepo rate plus applicable spread, currently at 7.90% p.a 

31 March 2025 

5,610.68 

As at 
31 March 2024 

(ix) Overdraft facility availed as sublimit of Term loan from ICICI Bank as at 31 March 2025: Rs. 734.78 million (31 March 2024: Rs. 741.64 million). The 
loan is secured by:-

a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy Tech 
Village, Bengaluru. 

b) First charge by way of hypothecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy Tech Village, Bcngaluru. 
c) Repayment and interest terms 

From Bank 

Repayable by way of a three annual installments from tl1e date of first drawdown. 
ll1e deht carries interest of I month MCLR plus applicable spread, currently 8.65 % p.a. 
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17 Non-current borrowings (continued) 

(x) Overdraft facility availed from AXIS Bank as al 31 March 2025: Rs. NIL million (31 March 2024: Rs. 641.37 million). The loan is secured by:-
a) A first ranking pari passu charge on the immovable properties I land and building) identified as Hilton Hotel , fanning part of the development known as Embassy 

Golflinks, Bengaluru. 
b) A corporate guarantee issued by UPPL. 
c) Repayment and interest terms 

From Bank 
Repayable by way ofa tluee annual installments from the date of first drawdown. 
The debt carries interest of I month MCLR plus applicable spread, currently 9.20 % p.a.** 

**This faci lity has been partially prepaid in December 202-l. 

As at 
31 March 2025 

As at 
3 I March 2024 

641.37 

(xi) Overdraft facility ava iled as sublimit of Term loan from SBI Bank as at 31 March 2025: Rs. -197.27 million (31 ~larch 2024: NIL). The loan is secured 
a) First ranking pari passu charge by way of mortgage on tl1e constructed buildings and related parcels identified as Block 2 having an aggregate leasab le area of 

19, 15,325 square feet and fom1ing part of the development known as Embassy Tech Vi llage together with portion of land admeasuring 12.93 acres on which the 
aforesaid buildings arc constmctcd . 

b) First ranking pari passu charge by way of hypotl1ecation oftl1e receivables from Block 2 of Embassy Tech Vi llage, Bengaluru. 
c) Repayment and interest terms As at As at 

31 March 2025 3 I March 2024 
From Bank 
l11e debt carries an interest rate of 3M T-Bill plus applicable spread, currently 8.33% p.a. 497.27 

(xii) 4,948.25 million (31 March 2024: 4,945. IO million) VTPL Series I, Non-Convertible debentures (NCD) 2022, face value of Rs.1,000,000 each 
During August 1022, company had issued 4,950 listed, AAA rated, secured, redeemable, transferable, green debt securities in tl1e fartn of non-convertible VTPL 
Series I NCD 2022 debentures having face va lue of Rs. I mi llion each amounting to Rs.4 ,950 million with a coupon rate of7.65% p.a. payable quarterly. 

l11e debentures described above were listed on tl1e Bombay Stock Exchange on 5 September 2022. 
Security term 
The NCD's are secured against each of the fo llowing in favour of the Debenture Trustee (hold ing for the benefi t of the Debenn1re Holders): 

I. A first ranking pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage on the constructed and related parcels of immovable propert ies identified as Parcel 5, 
admcasuring 2.43 million square feet and fanning part of the development known as Embassy Tech Village, Bengaluru. 

2. A first ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation over identified bank account and receivables. 
3. Keepwell Undertaking from Embassy Office Parks REIT. 
Redemption terms 
I. Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year until the Scheduled Redemption Date. 
2. These debentures will be redeemed on the expiry of 2 years and 364 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment for tl1e Debentures at par; on 29 August 2025 . 
3. In case of downgrading of credit rating, the coupon rate shall increase by 0.25% - 1.00% over and above the applicable coupon rate calculated from the date of 
change of rating. In case of any subsequent upgrading of credit rating, the coupon rate shall restore/decrease by 0.25 % - 1.00% over and above the coupon rate 
calculated from the date of change of rating. 

4. The issuer shall have the option of redeeming all or part of the debentures on a pro-rata basis at any time on a specified call option date (between Apri l 2025 to 
June 2025) by delivering a Call Option Notice to the debenture holders prior to tl1e relevant call option date. 

The company has maintained Security Cover of 1.93 times as at 3 1 March 2025, which is higher than the limit of 1.85 times stipulated in the debenture trust deed 
dated 29 August 2022 . 

(xiii) Disclosure required under SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/7 1 dated 13 April 2018 
Other requirements as per Guidelines for issuance of debt securi ties by regulations of SEB I (LOD RJ Regulations, 20 15 

Particulars As at As at 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Asset cover ratio ( refer a below) 0.31 0.30 
Debt - equity ratio (refer b below) ( 19.42) (16.66) 
Debt - servict: ,overage ratio (refer c below) 1.78 2.26 
Interest-service coverage ratio (refer d below) 2.67 2.26 
Outstanding redeemable preference shares/\ -
Debenture redemption reserve 495 .00 495.00 
Capital redemption reserve' -
Net wortl1 (refer e below) ( 1,917 93) (1 ,949.77) 
Net profit after tax 1,546.89 796.36 
Earnings per unit - Basic 237.43 122 .23 
Earnings per unit - Di luted 23743 122.23 
Current Ratio (in times) (refer fbelow ) 0.06 0.16 
Long tenn debt to working capital (in times) (refer g below) (054) (8.80) 
Bad debts to Account receivable ratio (in times) (refer h below) ' -
Current liabili ty ratio (in times) (refer i below) 0.65 0.12 
Total debts to total assets (in times) (referj below) 0.88 0.92 
Debtors' turnover (in times) (refer k below ) 172. 75 2 19.64 
Inventory turnover (refer I below) ' 
Operating margin (in%) (refer m below) 87.2 1% 87. 16% 
Net profit margin (in%) (refer n below ) 20.94% 11.42% 
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17 Non-current borrowings (continued) 
(xiii) Disclosure required under SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018 

Fomrnlae for computation of ratios are as follows basis financial statements:-

a) Asset cover ratio = Total borrowings*/ Gross asset value as computed by independent valuers 

b) Debt equity ratio = Total borrowings*/ Total Equity** 

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Finance costs, Depreciation, Amortisation and Tax / [Finance cost (net of capitalisation and excluding interest 

on lease deposit) + Principal repayments made during the year to tl1e extent not refinanced] 

d) Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before finance costs, Depreciation. Amortisation and Tax / Finance cost (net of capitalisation and excluding interest 
on lease deposit ) 

e ) Net worth - Equity share capital + Otlier equity 

I) Current Ratio - Current Assets / Current liabilities 

g) Long term debt to working capital = Long tenn debt* (Non current) I working capital (i .e. Current assets less current liabilities) 

h) Bad debts to Account receivable ratio = Bad Debts (including provision for doubtful debts) / Average trade receivables 

i) Current liability ratio = Current liabilities / Total liabilities 

j ) Total debts to total assets = Total debt / Total assets 

k) Debtors' turnover = Revenue from operations / average trade receivables 

I) Inventory turnover = Cost of Materials consumed / Average Inventory 

m) Operating margin = Net Operating Income••• / Revenue from Operations 

n) Net profi t margin = Profit after tax / Total income 

* Total borrowings = Long-term borrowings + Short-term borrowings 
**Total Equity = Equity share capital + Other equity 

' Not applicable 
***NOI is defined as revenue from operations twhich includes (i) faci li~· rentals, (ii) maintenance services income, (iii ) income from finance lease. and (iv) other 
operating income for Commercial Offices) less direct operating expenses (which includes (i) operating and maintenance expenses including common area 
maintenance expenses (ii ) property taxes, (ii i) rent and (iv) insurance). 

B) Details of security, repayment and interest on loan from related parties including interest accrued but not due 
Embassy Office Parks REIT balance as at 31 March 2025: Rs. 4,010.38 million (31 March 2024: Rs.12,198.94 million) 
a) Unsecured loan from holdin u entity. 

b) Repayment and interest terms 

Interest • 12.50% per annum . The Lender may reset the rate of interest applicable to ail or any tranche of the loan 
amount on: (i) any drawdown date; and (ii) any interest payment date prior to the repayment date, by giving a notice 
of not less than 5 (five) days to the borrower, provided that pursuant to any such reset, the interest rate shall continue 
to be not less than 12.50% per annum and not more than 14.00% per annum for any disbursements of the loan 
amount out of the proceeds obtained by lender by listing its units . 

Repayment: 
(a) Bullet repayment on the date falling at the end of 15 (fifteen ) years from the first drawdown date. 
(b) Early repavment option (wholly or partially) is available to the Company. 

C) There are no defaults in repayment of principal and interest to lenders as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. 
D) There were no requirements of filing quarterly returns or statements of current assets with banks in respect of any loan. 

18 Other non-current financia l liabilities 
Particulars 

Lease deposits 
Capital creditors 

- others 

I 9 Deferred ta x liabilities (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred tax liabilities on 
Impact of difference between Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties as per financials and tax 
books 
Unbilled revenue 
Fair valuation of lease deposit (net of deferred income on lease deposit) 

Deferred tax assets on 

Others 
Unabsorbed depreciation 
M inimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement 

As at 
31 March 2025 

4,010 .38 

As at 
31 March 2025 

569.57 

100. 10 

669.67 

As at 
31 March 2025 

3,260.68 

454 .95 
6.00 

(4 127) 
(3,071.22) 

(530. 76 l 
78.38 

As at 
31 March 2024 

12. 198.94 

As at 
31 March 2024 

439.57 

23.39 

462.96 

As at 
3 I March 2024 

2,978.29 

365.47 
8.00 

(61.78) 
(3.038.94) 

(197.87) 
53.17 

i) The Company has recognized MAT credit entitlement amounting to Rs. 530.76 million (31 March 2024 : Rs.197.87 million) based on the expected future taxable 
income basis which it shall be able to adjust tl1e aforementioned MAT credit entitlement. 
ii ) llie Company has brought forward unabsorbed depreciation amounting to Rs.8.788.97 million (3 1 March 2024: Rs.8,696.65 million). 
iii ) Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation have been recognized in the books to the extent it is probable tl1at the taxable profits will be available against 
which tl1e losses can be utili sed. 

Page 26 



Vik.1s Telecom Private Limited 
C IN: U64202KA l 992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated ) 

20 Other non-current liabilities 
Particulars 

Deferred lease rentals 

21 Current borrowin s 
Particulars 

Current maturities of long- term borrowings 
- from banks (Refer note 17A) 

Debentures ( Refer note 17 A) 
Overdraft 

- from banks (Refornote 17A and note 40) 
Short term borrowings from related party (refer note 178 and note 40) 

22 Trade avablcs 
Particulars 

Total outstandinc dues of micro enterprises and smaU enterorises ( refer note below) 
- others 
Total outstandinu dues of creditors other than micro enterorises and small enterprises 
- related parties (refer note <0) 
- others 

As at 
31 March 2025 

193.11 

193.11 

As at 
31 March 2025 

16,180.67 
4,949.29 

739.57 
720.24 

22 589.77 

As at 
31 March 2025 

15 .89 

17.53 
15 .• 9 

48.91 

Disclosure as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" ("MSMED Act, 2006"). 

Particulars 

- The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at U1e end of the accounting 
year; 
- The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amounts 
of tlte payment made to the supplier beyond the appomted day during accounting year; 

• The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making pa~ment (which have been paid but 
beyond tl1e appointed day during the year) but witl1out adding the interest specified under MS MED Act, 2006. (refer 
note I below) 

- The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year; and 

- The amount of further intt:rt!St n:nwining due and payalJlt: even in tht: succt:t!ding yt:ars. unlil such date when the 
interest dues as above are acnially paid to the small enterprise, for tl1e purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expendin1re under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006. 

Note 1 . No interest has been paid by the Company during tl1c year. 
Note 2: Refer note 4 1 for ageing based on requirement of Schedule Ill 

23 Other Current financial liabilities 
Particulars 

Lease deposits 
Capital creditors 

- related pai1ies (refer note 40) 
- others 

Other liabilities 
- related parties (refer note •0) 
- others 

24 Other current liabilities 
Particulars 

Statutory dues 
Advance from customers 
Unearned income 

Deferred lease rentals 
Others 

25 Current tax liabilities (net) 
Particulars 

Provision for tax. net of ad vancc tax 
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As at 
31 March 2025 

15.89 

As at 
31 March 2025 

3, 199. 11 

47.30 
2,526.07 

12. 14 
150.28 

5 934.90 

As at 
31 March 2025 

80.39 
1.46 
2.52 

85.42 
57.55 

227.34 

As at 
31 March 2025 

56.35 
56,35 

As at 
31 March 2024 

33.53 

33.53 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

29.61 

110.85 

140.46 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

18.25 

31.08 
4.68 

54.01 

As at 
31 March 2024 

18.25 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

3,053 .39 

8.25 
616.69 

44.4• 
98.03 

3.820.80 

As at 
31 March 2024 

81.74 
58 .11 
56.08 
80.33 
64.00 

340.26 

Asat 
31 March 2024 
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26 Revenue from operations 
Particulars 

Facility rentals (refer note 36 and 40) 
Revenue from contracts with customers 

- Maintenance services (refer note -IOJ 
Income from finance lease (refer note 37 ) 
Other operating income 

Note: Contract liabilities 
Particulars 

Advance received from customers (refer note 24) 
Unearned revenue (refer note 24 ) 

Revenue recognised over a period of time 

Maintenance Services 

27 Interest income 
Particulars 

Interest income 
- on fixed deposits wiU1 banks 
- on income tax refund 
- others 

28 Other income 
Particulars 

Profit on sale of mutual fonds 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Miscellaneous income 

29 Operating and maintenance expenses 
Particulars 

Property management fees (refer note 40 ) 

Repairs and maintenance towards (refer note 40) 
- common area maintenance 
- buildings 
- plant and machinery 
- others 
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For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 202-1 

6. 124 .28 5,813.39 

1.249.40 1,134.86 
606 17.49 
6.93 10.2 1 

7 386.67 6,975.95 

As at As at 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

0.43 58.11 
5.94 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

1.249.40 1,134.86 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

7.60 5.15 
15.45 18.86 
10.68 13.68 
33.73 37.69 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

6.69 24.41 
1103 9 07 

139.8 1 60.38 
257.53 93.86 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

17204 164. 14 

470.73 432 .07 
0.43 7.44 

I 10.54 129.37 
32.3 1 28.88 

786,05 761.90 
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CIN: U64202KA 1992PTC083998 
Notes to the financia l statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. mi llion unless otherwise stated) 

30 Other ex enses 
Particulars 

Legal and professional charges (refer note 40) 
Auditor's remuneration (refer note below) 
Insurance 
Rates and taxes 
Property tax 
Assets and other balances written off 
Marketing and advertising expenses (refer note 40) 
Bank charges 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure (refor note 39) 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Auditor's remuneration (excluding Goods and service tax) 
Particulars 

As auditor 
- statutory audit 
- limited review 
- others 
Reimbursement of expenses 

31 Depreciation and amortization expense 
Particulars 

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment 
Depreciation on lnvestment properties 
Amortization of intangible assets 

32 Finance costs (net of capitalisation) 
Particulars 

Interest cost 
- on borrowings from banks and financial institutions 
- on debentures 
- on loan from related parties (refer note 40) 
- others 
- lease de osits 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

38.25 62.91 
5. 10 3.77 

18.53 25 .93 
0.35 

312.68 282.00 
0.55 

18.10 21.58 
2.77 2.18 

11.43 3.01 
6.54 0.60 

414.30 401.98 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

3.48 2.48 
1.29 1.29 
0.20 
0.13 
5.10 3.77 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

0. 11 0.42 
1.104.81 1,034.55 

920.00 920.00 
2,024.92 1,954.97 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

858.39 651.96 
306.21 321.22 

1,263 36 1,656.6 1 
0.33 

119.38 123.92 
2 547.67 2 753.71 

Gross interest expense for the year ended 31 March 2025 is Rs. 3)53.66 million (31 ~larch 2024· 3,320.80 million) and interest capitalised for the year 
ended 31 March 2025 is Rs. 805.99 million (31 March 2024: Rs 567.09 million). 

33 Earnings per share 
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average munber of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for savi ng in interest or 
dividend expenses. net of taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity 
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. 
The following reflects the profit and share data used in tlte basic and diluted EPS computations: 
(i) Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share: 

Particulars 

Profi t after tax for calculating basic and diluted EPS 
Weighted average number of shares* 
Earnings Per Share 
- Basic (Rupees/share) 
- Diluted I Rupees/share I 
*The Company has no potential dilutive equity shares 
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For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

1,546.89 
6,515,036 

237.43 
237.43 

For the year ended 
3 1 March 2024 

796.36 
6,515,036 

122.23 
122.23 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

34 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) 

Particulars 

Contingent liabilities 
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in respect oflncome-Tax matters (refernote (i)) 
b) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of Indirect tax matters (refer note (ii)) 
c) Other matters (refer note (iii) and (iv)) 

Capital commitments 
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for 

As at 
31 March 2025 

120.73 

1,783 .61 

As at 
31 March 2024 

1.62 
4.31 

120.73 

3,733.46 

Based on management's best estimate, infonnation currently available and basis expert opinion obtained by the Company, no provisions have been made for 
above claims as at 31 March 2025 . The Company will continue to monitor developments to identify sii:,rnificant uncertainties and change in estimates, if any, in 
future period. 

(i) TI1e Company was reassessed u/s. I 53C read with 1~3(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the A Y 2003-04 and 2004-05 . Certain additions u/s. 68 were 
made and tax demand of Rs.23.55 million and Rs.1 .62 million respectively was raised. The Company filed an appeal against the demand order before CIT(A) 
which was upheld in favour of Company quashing the demand raised. Aggrieved by the CIT(A) order, Income Tax Department filed an appeal before Hon'ble 
Dell1i ITA T. For A Y 2003-04 Hon'blc Delhi ITA T has disposed the case in favour of Company and resultantly the Income Tax Department filed an appeal 
before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi which was also disposed in favour of Company. Also for A Y 2004-05 the tax department's appeal has been dism issed by 
Hon'ble Delhi ITAT as the matter involved was having tax impact less than Rs. I million. Therefore, the Company has disclosed Nil (31 March 2024: Rs.1.62 
million) as contingent liability. 

(ii) The Customs department issued demand notice 10 the Oil Suppliers oftl1e Company with a demand ofRs.4.31 million for tl1e period I April 2015 to 15 
February 2016 denying duty benefit on the procurement of diesel. ·n,e Oil Suppliers have subsequently raised tl1e demand on the Company. Consequently, 
Company preferred an appeal before the SEZ commissioner which was rejected by tl1e Commissioner and aggrieved by the order, SPV filed a Writ Petition 
before the Hon'ble High Court of Kamataka and obtained an Interim stay order from the Court on 9 February 2017 . The Company has received a favourable 
order from High Court allowing tl1e duty benefit on procurement of diesel. Accordingly, tl1e Company has disclosed Nil (31 March 2024 : Rs.4.31 million) as 
contingent liability. 

(iii) Company has received a demand note dated 14 August 2020 and 29 September 2020 from the Bangalore Water Supply and Sewerage Board for a payment 
of total charges amounting to Rs.138.64 million in relation to issuance ofa no-objection certificate (NOC) for a proposed project commercial building on land 
parcel. Company has filed a writ petition before the High Court of Karnataka against the State of Karnataka, Bangalore Water Supply and Sewerage Board and 
others challenging inter-alia, the government order dated 12 February 2016 and the demand note issued against the Company and seeking to, inter-alia, (i) 
quash the demand notice dated 14 August 2020 and 29 September 2020; and (ii) issuance of NOC to Company. Company has obtained an ad-interim direction 
from tl1e High Court of Kamataka on 17 November 2020 wherein the court has 1,,ranted stay of demand notice on 14 August 2020 and 29 September 2020 
limited to advance probable pro-rata charges and beneficiary charges and has further instructed the Company to pay tl1e prescribed fee for issuance of NOC. 
Pursuant to tl1c same, Company has made payments on 29 December 2020 and 30 December 2020 amounting to Rs.17.91 million towards NOC charges and 
treated water charges and tl1e balance amount of Rs.120. 73 million towards advance probable pro-rata charges and BCC charges which have been stayed by tl1e 
Hon'ble High Court of Kamataka have been shown as contingent liability (31 March 2024: Rs. 120.73 million). Additionally, Company has received the NOCs 
dated 30 December 2020 from BWSSB with respect to the above. The High Court of Karnataka has passed an order dated 22 April 2024, wherein it has been 
held that the advance probable pro-rata charges and treated water charges for construction are upheld and the beneficiary capital connibution charges and 
greater Bangalore water sewage project charges are held to be illegal. The Company has filed an appeal against tl1e order oftl1e High Court. 

(iv) Company has received a demand note dated 4 May 2024 from the Bangalore Water Supply and Sewerage Board for a payment of total charges amounting 
to Rs. 16.35 million in relation to issuance of a no-objection certificate (NOC) for a proposed project commercial building on land parcel. Company has filed a 
writ petition before the High Court of Karnataka against tl1e State of Karnataka, Bangalore Water Supply and Sewerage Board and others challenging inter-alia, 
the government order dated 12 February 2016 and the demand note issued against the Company and seeking to, inter-alia, (i) quash the demand notice dated 4 
May 2024 ; and (ii) issuance of NOC to Company. Pursuant to an order dated 26 September 2024, the High Court of Kamataka h'l1lnted an ad-interim stay on 
tl1e demand notice dated May 4, 2020 in relation to certain charges such as advance probable pro-rata charges and beneficiary capital contribution charges and 
Greater Bangalore water sewerage project charges. 

( v) An application dated 15 January 2025 for emergency interim relief ("Interim Application") was filed before the Singapore International Arbitration Centre 
("SIAC") by certain former third-party shareholders of the Company ("Claimants" ) against Axis Trustee Services Limited ("Trustee") and Embassy Office 
Parks Management Services Private Limited ("Manager") (Trustee and Manager collectively referred to as "Respondents"), in relation to the share purchase 
agreement dated November 17, 2020 ("SPA") among the Claimants and the Respondenls (on behalf of Embassy REIT). The Interim Application alleged tlrnt 
the Company was void, inter alia, since (i) tl1e Claimants were allegedly not aware that Survey no. 9/4, a land parcel located witl1in the ETV Project campus and 
owned by the Company since 2004 , was transferred to Embassy REIT as part of the acquisition of 100% of the equity share capital of the Company by 
Embassy REIT in 2020 pursuant to the SPA: and (ii) tl1e SPA allegedly defeated certain provisions of law . The Application was rejected by SIAC pursuant to 
an order dated 16 January 2025. 

Thereafter, the Claimants filed a Notice of Arbitration dated 20 January 2025 ("Notice of Arbitration" ) before the SIAC against the Respondents. The Notice of 
Arbitration contains similar allegations and seeks similar reliefs to the Interim Application. This matter is currently pending. 
Separately, the Claimants have filed an application under the section 9 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 ("Section 9 Application") before the 
Commercial Court, Bengaluru seeking interim reliefs on similar b'founds and as indicated under tl1e Interim Application. This matter is currently pending. 
Based on the expert legal opinion obtained and Company's best estimate and information currently available, no provision has been made for above claims in 
these financial statements. The company will continue monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties and change in estimates, if any, in future 
period. 

(vi) A search under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, I 96 I was conducted on I June 2022 on the Company. Further, tl1e Company had received reassessment 
notice u/s 148 of the Income Tax Act, 196 I for A Y 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22 for which tl1e Company has filed returns u/s 148 of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961. TI1e reassessment proceedings for A Y 2019-20 was concluded witl1 certain adjusunents and an appeal being filed before CIT(A). For other years tl1e 
Company has received tJ1e reassessment orders and is evaluating the next course of action. 
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35 Segment reporting 
Operating Segment 

36 

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn / revenues and incur expenses and for 
which discrete financia l information is available. The operating segments' operating results are reviewed by tlte Chief Operating Decision Maker 
('CODM') to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their perfonnance . l11e Company' s business activities fall 
within one component namely, "Leasing of immovable properties" Accordingly separate disclosure as per the requirements of Ind AS I 08 excluding 
Ind AS adjustments, Operating Segments, are not applicable. The Company operates only in India, hence, geographical disclosure is not applicable. 

Information about major customers -
The revenue from the below customers constitutes more than 10 percent of the Compan\''s total revenue. 
Customer 

Total Revenue 

Customer I 
Customer 2 

Leases 

Company as Lessor 
Operating leases 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

7,003.97 6,8 17 39 

I, 154.42 1,176.28 
8 14.72 743 .06 

The Company is primarily engaged in tlte business of development and leasing of office space and related interiors and accordingly has leased its 
properties under both cancellable and non&cancellable operating lease abrreement. 

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements with its lessees. 111e total lease rental income recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
for the year ended 3 1 March 2025 is Rs.6, 124.28 million (31 March 2024: Rs.5,8 13.39 mi llion). 
Future minimum lease 

The future minimum lease rental receivable under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate are as follows: (refer note below} 

Particulars 

Not later than one year 
Later than one year and not later tJ1an five years 
Lnter thnn five yenrs 

As at 
31 March 2025 

1,603 .36 
5,597 .55 

8,968 .53 
16,169,43 

As at 
31 March 2024 

1,677.09 
1,286.72 
9, 11 0.89 

12,074.70 

37 Finance leases 
The Company has provided fit-outs to the tenants through finance leases. Total finance income on net investm ent in lease recogn ized in the statement of 
profit and loss for the year ended 31 ~larch 2025 is Rs. 6.06 million (31 March 2024 : Rs 17.49 million). The future minimum lease receivables in 
respect ofnon-cancellable lease for fit outs given on finance lease are as follows: 

As at 31 March 2025 
Particulars 

Not later than one year 
Later Utan one year and not later titan five years 

Later than five years 

As at 31 March 2024 

Particula rs 

Not later than one year 

Later than one year and not later than five years 
Later than five years 
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Minimum 
lease 

payments 

15.63 

15.63 

Minimum 
lease 

payments 

37.47 

15.63 

53,10 

Unearned Present value of 
finance income minimum lease 

payments 

128 14.35 

1.28 14.35 

Unearned Present value of 
finance income minimum lease 

payments 

6.06 3 1.4 1 
1.28 14.35 

7.34 45,76 
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38 No managerial remuneration is payable lo di rectors during the year ended 31 March 2025 (3 1 March 2024: Nil ) 

39 Expenditure on Corporate social responsibilitv (CSR) activities 
Particulars 

Where the company covered under section 135 of Oic companies act, Ore following shall be 
disclosed with regard to CS R activities:-

(a) amount required to be spent by the company during the year 
(b) amount of expenditure incurred, 

( i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 
( ii ) On purposes other than (i) above 

( c) shortfall at the end of the year 
(d) total of previous years shortfall 
( e) reason for shortfall 
(0 nature of CSR activities 

(g) details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in 
relation lo CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard, 
(h) movement in provision during the year with respect to liability incurred for CSR expenditure 
by entering into contractual obligation 

For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

11.43 
11.43 
2.42 
9 0 1 

NA 
Education program and 

education support 
NIL 

There are no unspent amount by the Company during the year ended 3 1 March 2025 and 3 1 March 2024. 

(tl1is space is intentionally left blank) 
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For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

3.01 
3.01 

30 1 

NA 
Education program and 

education support 
NIL 
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40 Related parties disclosures 

(i) Names of related parties and description of relationship: 

A. Enterprises and individuals who exercise control 
Holdi11g entity 
1l1a11ager of ltolrli11g e11tity 

Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Embassy Office Parks Management Services Private Limited 

8 . Other related parties with whom transactions ha,·e taken place during the year 

Fellow Suhisitli11ry 

Other related parties 

C. Key ma11ageme11I personnel 

(ii) Related party transactions: 

Particulars 

Facility rentals 
Wework India Management Limited 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 

Facility maintenance income 
Wcwork India Management Limited 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 

Interest income 
Axis Bank Limited 

Dividend Paid 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Property management fees 
Embassy Office Parks Management Services Private Limited 
Lounge Hospitality LLP 

Power and fuel 
Embassy Energy Private Limited 
Mac Charles India Limited 

Interest expenses (including capitalized) 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Axis Bank Limited 

Investment in fixed deposits 
Axis Bank Limited 

Redemption of fixed deposits 
Axis Bank Limited 

Corporate guarantee given 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Corporate guarantee taken 
Umbel Properties Private Limited 
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Embassy Energy Private Limited 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 
Umbel Properties Private Limited 

VTV Infrastructure Management Private Limited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 
Wework India Management Limited (formerly known as Wework India 
Management Private Limited) 
Lounge Hospitality LLP 
Mac Charles India Limited 
Next Level Experiences LLP 
Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 
Miracle Coatings Private Limited I Formerly known Bangalore Paints Private 
Limited) 
Babbler Marketing Private Limited 
Embassy Real Estate and Development Services Private Limited 
Axis Bank Limited 
Global Facade Solutions 

Di rec/ors 

Raghu Sapra 
Vikaash Khdloya (upto 27 April 2023) 
.litendra Mohandas Vinvani 
Donnie Dominic George 
Aravind Maiya (w.e.f28 Apri l 2023 upto 7 November 2024) 
R.itwik Bhattacharjee (w.e.f 8 November 2024) 

Co111pa11y Secretary 

Gautham Namhiar 

(There are no transactions with key managerial personnel) 

For the year ended 
3 I March 2025 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

146.88 
107 .64 

31.02 
19.77 

1.40 

1,515.07 

172.04 

176.84 
69.84 

1,264.72 
14.75 

540 .00 

133.54 
107.64 

31.02 
19.77 

2.74 

174. 14 
( 10.00) 

34V0 
96.88 

1,690.5 1 
114.13 

227.95 

210.19 

10,000.00 

500.00 
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40 Related parties disclosures (continued) 
(ii) Related party transactions: (continued) 

Particulars 

Project cost incurred (capitalised) 
Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facility l\ lanagement Private Limited 
Umbel Properties Private Limited 
Miracle Coatings Private Limited 
Babbler Marketing Private Limited 
Global Facade Solutions 

Reimbursement of expenses - Legal and Professional fees 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 

Reimbursemen t of expenses - Advertisement 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Payments made by related party on behalf of the Company 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 

Reimbursement of expenses 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 

Marketing and advertising expenses 
Next Level Experiences LLP 

Common area maintenance 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Lounge Hospitality LLP 
Technique Control Faci li ty l\ lanagement Private Limited 

Repairs and maintenance - building 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 

Repairs and maintenance - Plant & Machinery 
Technique Control Facility l\lanagement Private Limited 

Repairs and maintenance - Others 
Embassy Services Private Lim ited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 
Next Level Experiences LLP 
Lounge Hospitality LLP 

Bank Charges 
Axis Bank Limited 

Long term borrowings ava iled 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Axis Bank Limited 

Short term borrowings availed 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Long term borrowings repaid 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Axis Bank Limited 

Short term borrowings repaid 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

168.08 15 1.60 
34 02 25.8 1 

3.78 
0.04 0.07 

50.06 5.60 
39.4 1 4.39 

6.26 6. 15 

4.80 9.41 
0.26 

0.84 3.24 

8.47 11.68 

0.34 

4.28 
1.40 
0.96 

9.04 9.90 

121.[8 109.84 
( 1241) 

177.21 161.93 

0.20 

0.74 

0.63 
2.04 
0.28 
0.03 

1.08 2.00 

3,229.30 2,292 .63 
I 09.40 

6,875 .09 28,180.44 

12,292 .27 3,504.54 
642.63 1,437.37 

6,170.00 28,180.44 
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40 Related parties disclosures (continued) 
(iii) Amounts outstanding as at the balance sheet date: 

Particulars 

Other non-current assets - Capital advance 
Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 
Mirach:! Coatings Private Limited 

Trade receivables 
VTV Infrastructure Management Private Limited 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 

Other Current assets - Security deposits 
Em bassy Energy Private Lim ited 

Fixed deposits with banks (including interest accrued) 
Axis Bank Limited 

Non-current borrowings 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Axis Bank Limited 

Current borrowings 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Axis Bank Limited 

Trade payables 
Lounge Hospitality LLP 

Embassy Real Estate and Development Services Private Limited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Mac Charles India Lim ited 

Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Next Level Experiences LLP 
VTV Infrastructure Management Private Limited 

Capital creditors 
Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 
Miracle Coatings Priva te Limited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 
Babbler Marketin g Private Limited 
Global Facade Solutions 
Embassy Services Private Limited 

Other liabilities 
Embassy Office Park Management Services Private Limited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 
Embassy Energy Private Limited 
Mac Charles India Limited 
Next Level Experiences LLP 

Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 
Technique Control Facility ~lanagement Private Limited 
Embassy Office Park Management Services Private Lim ited 
Next Level Experiences LLP 
Embassy Energy Private Limited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 

Corporate guarantee given 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Corporate guarantee taken 
Umbel Properties Private Limited (Note A) 

As at 
31 March 2025 

29.87 

0.30 
1.94 

105.00 

2 1.70 

3,290.14 

720 .24 

10.03 

5.65 
1.27 
0.57 

2.72 
22.88 

2.52 
R.77 
2.00 
8.4 1 

3.23 
4.6 1 

4.30 

8.08 
1.46 
1.33 

10,000.00 

810.00 

As at 
31 March 2024 

2.78 
4.28 

1008 

0.30 

105.00 

20.44 

12, 198.94 
537.63 

105.00 

7. 57 
5.19 

0.17 

9. 05 

8.53 
0.57 

0.60 
1.36 

3.% 
0.16 
2.77 

1.87 

0.17 
0.21 

30.75 
9.64 
I. S I 

36.42 

18.33 

10,000.00 

800.00 

Note A: The Company has availed bank overdraft , bank guarantee and letter of credit faci lity from a bank amounting to Rs.810 million (3 1 March 2024: 
Rs.800 million). In this regard. Umbel Properties Private Limited. a fellow subsidiary, has given corporate guarantee to bank along with charge on certain 
assets of Umbel Properties Private Limited . 

Note B: Outstanding balances at the year-end, arising from transactions with related parties under ordina1y course of the business, are unsecured and 
settlement occurs in cash as per agreed terms. 
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41 Financial instruments - fair value measurement and risk management 
A. The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as below: 

Particulars 

Financial assets: measured at amortised cost. 
Fixed deposits witl1 banks 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade receivables 
Other financial assets 
Total 

Financial liabilities: measured at amortised cost. 
Borrowings - floating rates 
Borrowings - fixed rates - NCD 
Borrowings - fixed rates 
Trade payables 
Lease deposits 
Other financial liabilities 

Total 

Carrying value Fair value 
As al As at As al As al 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

336.51 73.99 -
852.00 0.06 - -

54.05 3 1.47 - -
1,685.73 1,424.16 - -
2,928.29 1,529.68 - -

28,282.05 15,342.20 -
4,949.29 .J,945 .10 4,949.29 .J,945. 10 
4,010.38 12, 198.94 -

48.91 54.01 - -
3,768.68 3,492.96 - -
2,835.89 790.80 - -

43,895.20 36,824.01 4,949.29 4,945.10 

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits, trade receivables, borrowings, lease deposits, trade payables and other financial assets and liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts and hence the san1e has not been disclosed in the table above. 

B. Measurement of fa ir values 
The section explains the judgment and estimates made in detennining the fair va lues of the financial instruments that are: 
a) recognised and measured at fair value 
b) measured al amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in tl1e financial statements. 

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in detem1ining fair value. tl1e Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels 
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below: 

Level I : Level I hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the 
stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as al U1e reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using U1e closing NA V. 

Level 2: The fair va lue of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is de1em1ined using 
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair 
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observab le market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. 

Transfers between Level I, Level 2 and Level 3 
There were no transfers between Level I, Level 2 or Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 3 1 March 2024. 

Determination of fair values: 
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further 
information about tl,e assumptions made in detem1ining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to tlrnt asset or liability. 

i) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their canying values. 
ii ) The fair va lues of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future contracted cashflows discounted at the current market rate. 
The fair value has been categorised as Level 3 Fair Value. 

C. Financial risk management 
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 
- credit risk (refer note ii below) 

- liquidi ty risk (refer note iii below) 

- market risk (refer note iv below) 

(i) Risk management framework 
The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibili ty for the establ ishm ent and oversight of the Company's ri sk management framework . The Company's risk 
management policies are established to identi fy and analyse the risks faced by tl1e Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence 
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

The Company's Board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the 
adequacy of the risk management framew ork in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of directors is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. 
Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of directors . 
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41 Financial instruments - fair value measurement and risk management (continued) 
C. Financial risk management (continued) 

(ii) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the fa ilure of tenants or counterparties of the Company, to settle its financial and contractual obligations, as and 
when they fall due. 
The Company has an established process to evaluate the creditworthiness of its tenants and prospective tenants to minimize potential credit risk. Credit evaluations are 
perfonned by the Company before lease agreements are entered into with prospective tenants. Security in the fonn of bankers' guarantees, corporate guarantees or cash 
security deposits are obtained upon the commencement of the lease. 
The Company establishes an allowance account for impainnent that represents its estim ate oflosses in respect of trade and other recei vables. llte main component of this 
allowance is estimated losses that relate to specific tenants or counterparties. 
The allowance account is used to provide for impainnent losses. Subsequently when the company is satisfied that no recovery of such losses is possible, the financia l asset 
is considered irrecoverable and the amount charged to the allowance account is then written off against the carrying amount of the impaired financi al asset. 
Cash at bank and fixed deposits are placed with scheduled banks which are regulated and have low or no risk . 
As at the reporting date. there is no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying va lue of each fin ancial 
asset on the Balance Sheet. 
i\t 31 March 2025 , the carrying amount oftl1e Company's most significant customer is Rs 16.35 million (31 March 2024: Rs 16.05 million) 

a) Trade Receivables: 
111e Company's exposure to credit ri sk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each custom er. However, Management also considers the factors that may 
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. 
Expected credit loss (ECL) t1ssessment for corporate customers as at 31 Marc ft 2025 am/ 31 Marc ft 1024. 

The Com pany allocates each exposure to a credit ri sk grade hased on a variety of data that is detennined to he predictive of the risk of loss (including hut not limited to 
past payment history, security by way of deposits, external ratings, audi ted financial statements, management accounts and cash flow projections and available press 
information about customers) and applying experienced credit judgement. 
The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit loss of trade receivables from individual customers. 

Based on the industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates, management considers that the trade receivables are credit impaired if the 
payments are more tlian 180 days past due. 
The following lable provides ageing of trade receivables along with in fonnation about the exposure lo credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables: 
As at 3 I March 2025 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(i i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have 
sib'Tlificant increase in credit risk 
(iii ) Undi sputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Gross receivables 
Provision amount 
Net carrying amount 

As at 31 March 2024 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 
(ii ) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables- which have 
significant increase in credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Gross receivables 
Provision amount 
Net carrying amount 

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payments 
Not due Less than 6 6 months - I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 

months I car 3 cars 

36.02 17.73 0.30 

36,02 17.73 0.30 

36.02 17.73 0.30 

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payments 
Not due Less than 6 6 months - I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 

months I ear 3 ears 

28.63 1.26 0.96 0.30 0.32 

28.63 1.26 0.96 0.30 0.32 

28.63 1.26 0.96 0.30 0.32 
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41 Financial instruments - fair value measurement and risk management (continued) 
C. Financia l risk management (continued) 

b) Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances and fixed deposits with banks): 

l11c Company holds cash and cash equivalents ofRs.852.00 million (31 March 2024: Rs.0.06 million) and fixed deposits witl1 bank ofRs.336.51 million (31 March 
2024: Rs.73.99 million).The cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits witl1 bank are mainly held with scheduled banks. The Company considers tliat its cash and cash 
equivalents and fixed deposits with bank have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of counterpanies. 

c) Security deposits (classified as other financial assets): 

Expected credit loss for loans and security deposits is as follows : 

Particulars Period ended Estimated Expected Expected credit Carrying 
gross ca rrying probability of losses amount, net of 

amount default impairment 
provision 

As at 308.44 - - 308.44 

Loss at 12 months ECL 
Risk same since initial 31 March 2025 

recognition As at 252.98 - 252.98 
31 March 2024 

d) Other financial assets: 
The Company considers that its other financial assets which mainly represents unbilled revenue with its tenants and have low credit ri sk based on its nature and other 
securi ty available. 

(iii) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wi ll encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liahilities that are senled hy delivering cash or 
another financia l asset. tl1e Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they 
are due, under both nom1al and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. 
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows . This is generally carried 
out by the Management of the Company in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy involves 
projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monit01ing balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory 
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 
l11e table below details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The contractual cash flows reflect the undiscounted cash 
flows of financial liabilities based on tl1e earl iest date on which tl1e Company can be required to pay. 

Contractual Cashllows 
As at 31 March 2025 

Non-derivative financia l liabilities 

Borrowings<1
) 

Trade payables 

Lease deposits 12 1 

Other financial liabilities 

As at 31 March 2024 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Borrowings n 1 

Trade payables 

Lease deposits " J 

Other financial liabilities 

Carrying 
Amount as at 

31 March 2025 

37,241.72 

48.91 
3,768.68 

2,835.89 
43,895.20 

Carrying 
Amount as at 

31 March 2024 

32,486.24 

54.01 
3,492.96 

790.80 
36 824.01 

Less than I 
year 

24,544.07 

48.91 
3,211.68 

2,735.79 
30 540.46 

Less than I 
year 

1,709.28 

54.01 
3,108.25 

767.41 
5 638.95 

1-3 years 

7,081.84 

395.82 

100.10 
7 577.76 

1-3 years 

21,100.07 

425.39 

23.39 
21,548.85 

3-5 years More than 5 
years 

2,179.04 10,470.78 

456 .89 

2 635.93 10 470.78 

3-5 years More than 5 
years 

12,198.94 

9609 

96.09 12 198.94 

Total 

44,275.73 

48.91 
4,064.39 

2,835.89 
SI 224.93 

Total 

35,008.29 

54.01 
3,629.73 

790.80 
39 482.83 

(I) As at 31 March 2025, includes future cash outflow towards estimated interest on borrowings except short tenn borrowings and borrowings from holding entity, 
wherein the principal amount has been considered. 
(2) The lease deposit canying amount is reflected at discounted value and tl1e cash flow s is reflected at undiscounted cash flows. 
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41 Financial instruments - fair value measurement and risk management (continued) 
C. Financial risk ma nagement (continued) 

l\rla turity analysis of financial assets 
As at 31 :viarch 2025 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other financial assets ( current and non-current) 

As at 31 :viarch 2024 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other financial assels (cun-ent and non-current) 

Following table (lrovides det:tiled ageing for trade payables: 
As at 31 March 2025 

Particulars 

(i) i\lSi\lE 
(ii)Otl1ers 
(iii ) Disputed dues - MSME 
iv )Dis utcd dues - Others 

Net carrying amount 

As at 31 March 2024 

Particulars 

(i) MSME 
(i i) Others 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME 
(iv)Dis uted dues - Others 
Net carrying amount 

Financing arrangement 

Carrying 
Amount as at 

31 March 2025 
54.05 

852.00 
2,022 .24 
2,928.29 

Carrying 
Amount as at 

31 March 2024 
3 1.47 

0.06 
1,498. 15 
1,529.68 

Not due 

15.89 

15.89 

Not due 

18.25 

18.25 

Less than 1 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 
year years 

54.05 
852.00 

78.45 46.98 155 .33 1,754.35 
984,50 46.98 155.33 I 754,35 

Less than I 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 
year years 

31.47 
0.06 

332.48 (197 .9 1) (222.48) 1,590.79 
364.01 (197.91) (222.48) 1,590.79 

Outstanding for following (!eriods from due date of (!avments 
Less than I I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 

vear 3 years 

30.13 092 1.98 

30.13 0.92 1.98 

Outstanding for following (!eriods from due date of l!arments 
Less than 1 1 - 2 yea rs 2 - 3 years More than 

car 3 vears 

20.77 4.90 7.58 2.51 

20.77 4.90 7.58 2.51 

The Company had Rs. 2.370 million (3 1 March 2024: Rs.2,850 million) undrawn borrowing facilities from banks at the end of the reporting year. 

(iv) Market risk 

Total 

54.05 
852.00 

2,035 . 11 
2 941.1 6 

Total 

31.47 
0.06 

1.502 88 
1,534.41 

Total 

15.89 
33 .02 

48.91 

Total 

18.25 
35 .76 

54.01 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices. such as foreib'll exchange rates, interest rates, which will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instruments. llw objective of market risk managem ent is to manage and control market risk exposures with in acceptable parameters, while optimising the 
return. 

a) Currency risk 
The following table analyses the foreign currency risk from monetary assets and liabilities as at year ended 3 1 March 2025: Rs in million 
Particulars EURO USD Total 
Oti1er financial liabilities 2.57 7.75 10.32 

The following table analyses the foreign currency risk from monetary assets and liabili ties as at year ended 31 March 2024: Rs in million 
Particulars EURO USD Total 
Otl1er financial liabilit ies 7.39 7.39 

Foreign currency sensitivity 
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in VSD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on ti1e 
Company's profit before tax and equity is due to changes in the fai r value of moneta ry assets and liabilities. 

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax 
Change in USD rate +5% I -5% +5% I ~5% 
Other financia l liabilities as at 31 March 2025 (0.39) ! 0.39 (0 25) 1 0.25 
Other financial liabi lities as at 3 I March 2024 (0.37) 1 0.37 (0 26) 1 0.26 

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax 
Change in EURO rate +5% I ~5% + So/n I -5% 
Other financial liabi lities as at 3 1 March 2025 (0 13)1 0.13 (0 08) 1 0.08 
Other financia l liabilit ies as at 31 March 2024 I I 

The Company does not have any unhedged foreib'll currency exposure as on 31 March 2025 except for those disclosed above. 
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41 Financial instruments - fair value measurement and risk management (continued) 
C. Financial risk management (continued) 

b) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the futu re cash flows of a fi nancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company' s exposure to the 
risk of changes in market interest rates relates prim ari ly to its long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

c) Exposure to interest rate risk: 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. 
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the year are as fo llows: 

Particulars 

Fixed-rate instruments: 
Financial assets 
Fixed deposits with banks 
Security Deposi t 

Financial liabilities 
Boffowings 

Fixed instruments total 

Variable-rate instruments: 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings ( current and non-current) 
Variable rate instruments exposed to interest rate risks tota l 

Fair va lue sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments 

As at 
3 I March 2025 

336.51 
:108.44 
644.95 

(8,959.67) 
(8,959,67) 

(8,3 1-1.72) 

(28,282.05) 
(28,282.05) 

As at 
31 March 2024 

74.20 
257 .80 
332.00 

(17,144.04) 
(17,144.04) 

(16,812.o4) 

(15 ,342 .20) 
( I S,3~2.20) 

The Company does not account for any fixed~rate financial assets or financial liabil ities at fai r value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the 
reporting date would not affect profi t or loss. 

The fair value interest rate risk is the ri sk of fluctuati ons in the value of a financial instmment as a result of fluctuations in tl1e market interest rate. The Company is 
exposed to fai r va lue interest rate risk as a result of floating rate borrowings fi-om hanks and fin ancia l institutions. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
A reasonably possible change of l % in intt:rest rates at the reportin g date would have increased ( decreased) equity and profit and loss by the amounts shown bdow. This 
analysis assumes that nil other variables, remain constant. 

Particulars Profit or loss Equity net of tax 

+l 'l/o -1% + 1% -1% 

Loans and borrowings as at 31 :vtarch 2025 99.98 (99 98 ) 65.05 (65.05) 

Loans and borrowings as at 3 I March 2024 74.38 (74 38) 52.72 (52 72) 

d) Price risk: 
Price risk is the risk of fluctuati ons in the value of assets and liabi lities as a result of changes in market prices of investments. The company has no material exposure to 
equi ty securities price risk and is not exposed to commodity risk. ll1e company' s exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the company in mutual funds and 
classified in the balance sheet as fair value through statement of profit or loss. The fair value of these invesrn1ents is marked to an active market. The financial assets 
carried at fair value by the company are mainly investments in liquid and overnight deht mutual funds and accordingly no material volatility is expected. 

(this .,pace is intentional(v left Mank) 
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42 Capital Management 
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the equity share holders of the company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the 
shareholder value. 

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. The Company's capital structure mainly constitutes debt. The projects are initially fund ed through construction 
financing arrangements. On completion, these loans are restructured into lease-rental discounting arrangem ents. The Company's capital structure 
is influenced by the changes in regulatory framework, government policies, available options of financing and the impact of the same on the 
liquidity position. 

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For tliis purpose, Adjusted net debt is Long-term 
borrowings + Short - term borrowings less Cash and cash equivalents (including book overdraft). Adjusted equity comprises all components of 
equity. 

The Companv's adjusted net debt to cquitv ratio at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 was as follows: 
Particulars As at As at 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 
Total debt 37,241.72 32,486.24 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12) 852.00 0.06 

Adjusted net debt 36,389.72 32,486.18 

Total equity (1,917.93) (1,949.77) 

Adjusted cgui~ {1,917.93) (1,949.771 

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equitv ratio {18.97) (16.66) 

(!his space is i11/e11tio11al(v lefi blank) 
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43 Income tax 

(a) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss: 

Particulars 

Current tax charge: 
Current year 

Deferred tax charge 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 
Minimum alternate tax entitlement 
Others 
Tax expense 

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Particulars 

Profit before tax 

Enacted tax rate applicable to the company 
Income tax on accounting profi ts 
Reconciliation items 
Adjustments for tax of prior years 
Others 
Tax expense at effective income tax rate 

(c) Refer note 19 for recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 

(d) Unrecognised deferred tax assets: 
The Company docs not have any unrecognised deferred tax assets 

44 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 

For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

332.90 

358.10 
(332 90) 

358.10 

For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

1,904.99 

34.94% 
665.60 

(324.60) 
17.11 

358.11 

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities: 

Particulars 

Opening financial liability 

Cash flows: 
Proceeds from loans and borrowings (net off issue expenses) 
Repayment of borrowings 

Interest paid 
Non-cash adjustments: 

Capitalised borrowing cost 
[merest expense 

Balance at the end of the year 

(this space is inlrntiona/(y left blank) 

Page 42 

As at 
31 March 2025 

32,486.24 

24,223.49 
I 19,677.04) 

(3,025.25) 

805.99 

2,428.29 
37,241.72 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

106.27 

438.58 
( 106.27) 

438.58 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

1,234.94 

34.94% 
431.49 

7.55 
(0.46) 

438,58 

As at 
3 I March 2024 

30,258. 10 

35,335.79 
(33 ,129 85) 

(3 ,166.80) 

559.21 
2,629.79 

32,486.24 
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45 Ratio Ana • and its elements ** 

Particulars Numer:itor Denominator 31 March 2025 

Current ratio 

Current ratio (adjusted) 

Debt-equity ratio 
Debt service coverage ratio 

Return on equity ratio 
Trade receivables turnover ratio 
Trade payable turnover ratio 
Net capital turnover ratio 

Net profit ratio 
Return on capital employed 

Return on investment 

Current Assets 

Current Assds 

Total Debt 

Profit for the year + Non-cash operating 
expenses like depreciation and amortization 
expense + finance costs + other adjustments 
like loss on sale of fixed assets, etc 

Net Profits after tnxes 
Net credit sales = Revenue from operations 

Total expenses 
Net sales = Revenue from operations 
Net Profit 
Earnings before interest and taxes 

Interest on fixed deposits + Profit on sale of 
mutual funds + Dividend from mutual fmtds 

Current Liabilities 

Cum:nt liabilities - Current portion of lt:ase <lt:posit and dt:ft:rrt:d 
least: rt:ntals 

Shareholder's Equity 

Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments 

Average Shareholder's Equity 
Average Trade Receivable 

Average trade payables 
Average Working capital = Current assets -Current liabilities 
Net sales = Revenue from oper:itions 
Capital Employed ~ Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred 
Tax liability 

Weighted average investments in mutual funds + Weighted 
average fixed deposits with banks 

The Company has not disclosed inventory turnover ratio since the Company's business does not require maintenance of inventories. 

*"'Based on the requirements of Schedule Ill 
* Explanation given for change in the ratios which are more than 25% as compared to the preceding year. 

Notes: 
(i) Increase in current liabilities during the year 31 March 2025 as compared to 31 March 2024 has resulted in variance in current ratio and current ratio (adjusted) 
(ii) Increase in profits during the year ended 31 March 2025 as compared to year ended 31 March 2024 has resulted in increase in renlffl on equity and net profit ratio. 

0.06 
O.D7 

(19.42) 

1.78 

(79.99%) 
I 72.75 

23.33 
(0.48) 

20.94% 
12.80% 

9.83 % 

(iii} Decrease in average trade payable during year ended 31 March 2025 as compared to year ended 3 I March 2024 has resulted in variance in trade payables turnover ratio. 
{iv) Decrease in working capital balance as at year ended 31 March 2015 as compared to year ended 31 March 2014 led to variance in return on net capital turnover ratio. 

31 March 2024 

0.16 
0.56 

(16.66) 

2.26 

(33.92%) 
219.64 

12.78 
(2.01) 

11.42% 
13 .75% 

8.95% 

46 The Company outsources its manpower and technology assistance requirements and does not have any employee on its roles and hence does not incur any employee related benefits/costs. 

47 The Company does not have any transaction to report against the utilisation ofbonowed funds and securities premium as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule III. 

% Variance Reason for 
"ariance"' 

(61 %) Refer note (i) below 
(88%) Rt:frr nok (i) bdow 

17% 
(21 %) 

136% Refer note (ii) below 
(21 %) 

83% Refer note (iii) below 
(76%) Refer note (iv) below 
83% Refer note (ii) below 
(7%) 

10% 

48 The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail ( edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. Further, there are no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

49 The Company has defined process of taking daily back-up of books of account in electronic mode on severs physically located in India. 

for S R Butliboi & Associates LLP 
Chane red Accountants 

fUr and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
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BOARD'S REPORT 

Dear Members, 

Your directors present the Thirty-Third Annual Report of Vikas Telecom Private Limited ("Company") 
along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31 , 2025. 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 

The Company's financial performance for the year under review along with the previous year figures 
on standalone basis are given hereunder: 

(fin million) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Revenue from operations 7,386.67 6,975.95 

Add: Interest income 33.73 37.69 

Add: Other income 257.53 93.86 

Less: Operating expenses 786.05 761 .90 

Less: Other expenses 414.30 401 .98 

Earnings before finance cost, depreciation, 6,477.58 5,943.62 
amortization and tax ('EBITDA') 

Less: Finance cost, depreciation and 4,572.59 4,708.68 
amortization 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 1,904.99 1,234.94 

Less: Taxes (current and deferred) 358.10 438.58 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year 1,546.89 796.36 

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for theyear 1,546.89 796.36 

Note: Previous Year figures have been rearranged I regrouped, wherever necessary 

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND REVIEW OF OPERATIONS: 

The Company recorded operating revenues of~ 7,386.67 Million in the Financial Year 2024-25, as 
compared to ~ 6,975.95 Million in the Financial Year 2023-24; also, earnings before finance cost, 
taxes, depreciation and amortization i.e., EBITDA increased to ~6,477.58 Million in the Financial Year 
2024-25, as compared to ~5,943.62 Million in the Financial Year 2023-24. Net profit after tax for the 
Financial Year 2024-25 is ~1,546.89 Million as against Net profit of~ 796.36 Million in the Financial 
Year 2023-24. 
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3. DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND: 

During the year under review, the Company declared interim dividend in the following manner: 

S. No. Particulars Rate Amount (In f) Cut-off date for payment 
1. First Interim Dividend 82.89/- 540,031,334.04/- June 26, 2024 
2. Second Interim Dividend 39.91/- 260,015,086.76/- September 25, 2024 
3. Third Interim Dividend 69.84/- 455,010, 114.24/- December 25, 2024 
4. Fourth Interim Dividend 39.91/- 260,015,086.76/- March 26, 2025 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to reserves. 

5. ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS: 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and 
consequently, there are no outstanding deposits in terms of Section 73 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 

Further, the Company is annually filing with the Registrar of Companies requisite return in e-form DPT-
3 for submitting the details of outstanding receipts of money/ loan by the Company, which are not 
considered as deposits under Rule 2(1 )(c) of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

6. SHARE CAPITAL: 

As on March 31, 2025, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company stood at ~640,500,000 (Indian 
Rupees Six Hundred Forty Million Five Hundred Thousand Only) divided into 64,000,000 Equity 
Shares of ~10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each and 50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ~10/­
(lndian Rupees Ten Only) each. During the year, there was no change in the Authorized Share Capital 
of the Company. 

As on March 31, 2025, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stood at 
~651,550,360 (Indian Rupees Sixty-Five Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand Three Hundred Sixty 
Only) divided into 6,515,036 Equity Shares of ~10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each. During the year, 
there was no change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company. 

Also, during the year, there was no change in the Share Capital on account of Buy-Back of Securities, 
issuance of Sweat Equity or Bonus Shares, etc. 

7. POLICIES: 

The following policies have been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company including, as 
approved and adopted by Embassy Office Parks Management Services Private Limited ("EOPMSPL") 
(acting as theManager to Embassy Office Parks REIT ("Embassy REIT")), in its capacity as the 
Special Purpose Vehicle ("SPV") of Embassy REIT. 

As a part of the overall governance framework, the Board of Directors reviews all the policies once a 
year 

i. Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors, Senior Management and other employees 

The "Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors, Senior Management and other employees" 
demonstrates the group's overall commitment to conduct its affairs in fair, diligent and ethical 
manner, within the scope or authority conferred upon them and in accordance with the laws, 
rules and regulations applicable to the Company. 
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This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

ii. Borrowing Policy 

iii. 

The Borrowing Policy aims at outlining the process for borrowing monies to meet any liabilities, 
undertaking any investments/acquisitions or meet any other obligations of the Company. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy 

The Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy aims to ensure continuity of critical 
business processes at an acceptable level and limit the impact of the disaster on people, 
processes and infrastructure. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

iv. Anti-Money Laundering ("AML") Policy and Anti-Bribery and Corruption ("ABC") Policy 

The AML Policy aims to establish the controls around prevention of money laundering in the 
Company and is in accordance with the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. 

v. 

The ABC Policy aims at conducting all aspects of the Company's business with the highest legal 
and ethical standards and expects all persons acting on its behalf to uphold this commitment. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

Code on unpublished price sensitive information and dealing in securities of Vikas 
Telecom Private Limited and Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure in 
respect of Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

This Code aims to outline the process and procedures for dissemination of information and 
disclosures in relation to the Company and ensure that the Company complies with the 
applicable laws, including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015, and to the extent applicable or such other laws, regulations, rules 
or guidelines prohibiting insider trading and governing disclosure of material, unpublished price 
sensitive information. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

vi. Document Archival Policy 

The Document Archival Policy aims to provide a comprehensive policy on the preservation and 
conservation of the records and documents, both Physical and Electronic, of the Company and 
aims at identifying, classifying, storing, securing, retrieving, tracking and destroying or 
permanently preserving records. 
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This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

vii. Whistle Blower Policy 

The Whistle Blower Policy has been adopted with a view to providing a mechanism for the 
Directors of the Company to report their genuine concerns or grievances that could be a matter 
of serious concern for the Company. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

viii. Risk Management Policy 

ix. 

x. 

The Risk Management Policy is framed in line with the provisions of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and sets out the responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Company and other persons 
working for and on behalf of the Company in relation to identifying, assessing and remediating 
the risks posed to the Company. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

Policy on Related Party Transactions 

The Policy on Related Party Transactions is adopted to regulate the transactions of the 
Company with its related parties based on the laws and regulations applicable and to ensure 
proper approval, supervision and reporting of the transactions between the Company and its 
related parties. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

Distribution Policy 

The Distribution Policy is framed in line with the requirement of Regulation 18 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 and aims to provide 
a comprehensive policy on the conditions with regard to the distributions made by Embassy 
REIT based on the cash flows received from the HoldCo/SPVs and the distributions to be made 
by Holdco/ SPVs to Embassy REIT. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

xi. Short-term Investment Policy 

The Short-term Investment Policy provides a framework for investing surplus funds of the 
Company in instruments whose tenure is less than one year in order to earn returns, subject 
tothe investment limits specified in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate 
lnvestmentTrust) Regulations, 2014 ('REIT Regulations') and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 
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xii. Data Privacy Policy 

Data Privacy Policy provides a framework for the management of personal data and defines a 
set of minimum requirements with which the Company must comply to protect the confidentiality, 
integrity, availability , and authenticity of the information. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

xiii. Fraud Prevention Policy 

The Fraud Prevention Policy aims in promoting an ethical and fraud-free environment by 
creating awareness within the Company of their responsibilities for prevention, detection and 
reporting of fraud and for establishing controls and procedures for identification, prevention and 
detection of fraud . 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

xiv. Cyber Security Policy 

This Cyber Security Policy provides a framework and a set of guidelines for acceptable practices 
and procedures, that minimize the vulnerability of company data, networks and infrastructures 
to accidental or malicious attacks, with which the stakeholders must comply to protect the 
confidentiality, integrity, availability, and authenticity of the information. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

xv. Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Board has adopted a policy on Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR"), copy of which has 
been posted on the website of the Company at www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/. 

The brief salient features of the CSR Policy of the Company are-

(i) Outline projects, programs and activities to be undertaken by the Company; 

(ii) Specify the modalities of execution of such projects, programs and activities; 

(iii) Monitor the process to be followed for such projects, programs and activities; 

(iv) Directly or indirectly take up programs that benefit the communities in and around its work 
centers and results, over a period of time, in enhancing the quality of life and economic 
well-being of the local populace; and 

(v) Generate community goodwill for the Company and help reinforce a positive and socially 
responsible image, through our CSR Activities. 

The Company is committed to economic, environmental and social well-being of communities 
and would consider participating in appropriate CSR initiatives in the coming year(s) . 

The detailed CSR Policy of the Company can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks .com/vtpl/ 
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8. 

Further, the provisions of CSR were applicable to the Company during the year 2024-25. 

A brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company and the 
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure 
I of this Report as per the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy), Rules 2014. 

xvi. Policy for processing and claiming of unclaimed amount: 

This Policy has been formulated to prescribe the framework for dealing with unclaimed amounts 
lying with the Company and the manner of claiming such amounts by the holders of non­
convertible securities of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the circular 
SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-RAC-1/P/CIR/2023/176 dated November 08, 2023, issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company. 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

During the financial year under review, the Company has not entered into transactions with the related 
part(ies), except on arm's length and in the ordinary course of business. Furthermore, none of the 
related party transactions entered during the financial year were material in nature. The details of the 
related party transactions are set out in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS: 

The disclosure of particulars of loans given, investment made or guarantee given or security provided 
isnot applicable to the Company as the Company is engaged in providing infrastructure facilities. 

11. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2025, is as mentioned below: 

~- CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

S.No. Particulars Remarks 

1. The steps taken or impact on Throughout the year, the Company has been 
conservation of energy committed to energy conservation efforts, 

implementing various measures aimed at reducing 
environmental footprint namely: 

a. Utilized rooftop rainwater for HVAC cooling 
towers, enhancing chiller efficiency. 

b. Maintained HVAC system set-points in line with 
ambient temperature for optimal performance. 

C. Replaced inefficient lifts with advanced 
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2. 

3. 

The steps taken by the 
Company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy 

The capital investment on 
energy 
equipments 

conservation 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

S.No. 

1. 

Particulars 

The efforts made towards 
technology absorption 

Vikas Telecom 1-'nvate umItea 

technology in 2B T-1, 3 & 2D Service Lift 

d. Refurbished two 1000 TR cooling towers with 
new fills 

e. Upgraded AHUs by replacing belt drives with 
EC fans in 2B T-1, 6th & 7th floors - Cost: 0.14 
Million. 

f. Upgraded basement ventilation system to 
automatic mode. 

g. Refurbished two 850 TR cooling towers in B-1 
with new fills. 

h. Replaced cooling tower fills, nozzles, fan motor 
bushes, and defective pipelines for six 700 TR 
water-cooled chillers 

a. Maximized utilization of green power through 
wheeling units from EEPL & other solar plants, 
generating 57.28 million units. 

b. The current capacity of the rooftop solar system 
is 2.44 MW. Further, the rooftop solar system 
generated 3.98 million units, accounting for 5% 
of the total energy consumption. 

a. B2 - Replaced 1000 TR cooling tower at a cost 
on 1.74 million. 

b. B2 - Replaced inefficient lifts with advanced 
technology in 2B T-1, 3 & 2D Service Lift at a 
cost of~ 0.75 million. 

c. B2 - Upgraded AHUs by replacing belt drives 
with EC fans in 2B T-1, 6th & 7th floors at a cost 
oH0.14 million. 

d. B5 - Replaced cooling tower fills, nozzles, fan 
motor bushes, and defective pipelines at total 
capital investment of ~18.2 million. 

e. B1 - Refurbished two 850 TR cooling towers with 
new fills at cost of ~4.46 million . 

Remarks 

The Company is conscious towards technology 
absorption and adequate measures have been taken 
for the same, namely; 

a. Developed a customized software tool 
(Embassy Infinity) for daily operations, 
enabling energy data collection and 
monitoring. 
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2. 

3. 

4. 

b. Implemented Jarvis (video analytics) 
technology, an IP-based remote monitoring 
system integrated with existing CCTV in 
common areas and park periphery. It provides 
real-time event alerts using advanced Al 
analytics such as fire detection, intrusion, etc. , 
supporting security teams and QRT members 
to respond swiftly and minimize potential 
damage. 

c. Digitalized daily operations, including 
ESG/EHS reporting. 

The benefits derived like The Company has achieved a reduction in overall cost 
product improvement, cost and has seen performance improvement. Further, the 
reduction, product other benefits derived are as follows: 
development or import 
substitution • Significant energy savings 

In case of imported 
technology (imported during 
the last three years reckoned 
from the beginning of the 
Financial Year) 

a. The details of technology 
imported; 

b. The year of import; 

C. Whether the technology 
been fully absorbed; 

d. If not fully absorbed, 
areas where absorption 
has not taken place, and 
the reasons thereof 

The expenditure incurred on 
Researchand Development 

• Lower maintenance costs and reduced 
equipment downtime 

• Enhanced control and improved comfort 

• Upskilled workforce enabling a smooth 
transition to modern HVAC technologies 

• Reduced paper consumption, contributing to 
sustainability 

• Streamlined processes through digitalization of 
work permits, PPM, checklists, and gate 
passes 

During the year, the company has not imported any 
technology. 

Nil 
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Sr. No. Particulars Remarks 

1 The Foreign Exchange earned in terms FY 2024-25: NIL 
of actual inflows during the year 

FY 2023-24: NIL 

2 The Foreign Exchange Outgo during FY 2024-25: ~126.16 million 
the year in terms of actual outflows 

FY 2023-24: ~92.64 million 

12. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
comprised of the following: 

Name DIN/ Membership No. Designation 

Mr. Jitendra Mohandas Virwani 00027674 Nominee Director* 

Mr. Raghu Sapra 08455937 Nominee Director* 

Mr. Donnie Dominic George 09762419 Nominee Director* 

Mr. Ritwik Bhattacharjee 07371685 Nominee Director* 

Mr. Gautham Nambiar F12376 Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer 

*Appointed as a Nominee of Embassy REIT (acting through its Manager, Embassy Office Parks 
Management Services Private Limited) pursuant to the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Real 
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. 

During the year under review, Mr. Aravind Maiya ceased to be the Nominee Director of the 
Company with effect from November 7, 2024, and Mr. Ritwik Bhattacharjee as the Nominee Director 
in his place with effect from November 8, 2024. The Board of Directors of EOPMSPL, Manager to 
Embassy REIT, at its meeting held on November 7, 2024, approved the withdrawal of the 
nomination of Mr. Aravind Maiya as the Nominee Director on the Board of the Company, with effect 
from the close of business on the same day and nominated Mr. Ritwik Bhattacharjee, in his place, 
effective from the commencement of business on November 8, 2024. 

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per the applicable provisions of the Act. 

13. BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

A. Board Meetings: 

Details of the Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2024-25 as required under 
Section 134(3)(b) and in terms of Section 173 of the Act read with Secretarial Standard - I on 
Board Meetings issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India are as under: 
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First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter pct to Fourth Quarter Total Board 
(April to June) (July to Sept) Dec) (Jan to March) Meetings 

06 (six) 02 (two) 03 (three) 02 (two) 13 

April 08, 2024 July 24, 2024 October 23, 2024 January 28, 2025 (Thirteen) 

April 23, 2024 August 28, 2024 November 08, 2024 January 30, 2025 

May 24, 2024 December 20, 2024 

June 18, 2024 

June 24, 2024 

June 26, 2024 

B. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee ("CSR") Meetings: 

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the CSR Committee met 04 (four) times. The meetings 
were held on April 22, 2024, October 22, 2024, January 27, 2025, and January 30, 2025. 

The intervals between any two consecutive Board or Committee Meetings were within the 
maximum permissible period mentioned under the Act and LODR Regulations. 

14. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 
REPORT: 

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this 
Report, which affects the financial position of the Company. 

15. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review. 

16. CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE: 

During the year under review and with effect from July 24, 2024, the Company has shifted its registered 
office from Royal Oaks, Embassy Golflinks Business Park, Off Intermediate Ring Road, Bangalore - 560 
071, Karnataka, India to 12th Floor, Pinnacle Tower, Embassy One, 8, Bellary Road, Ganganagar, 
Bengaluru, Karnataka - 560 032. The Company has filed the requisite e-forms with the Registrar of 
Companies to effect the said change. 

17. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN 
FUTURE: 

In the matter of CA Aravind Maiya, concerning his earlier employment at Mis. BSR & Associates LLP 
in 2019, the National Financial Reporting Authority, vide its order no. 020/2024 dated August 19, 2024, 
has, levied penalty and imposed certain restrictions relating to his audit engagement for 10 years. 
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However, the said order in our view had no relation to his directorship in the Company. Furthermore, 
CA Aravind Maiya ceased to be a Nominee Director in the Company with effect from November 07, 
2024. 

Apart from this, were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

18. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

The requirements of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company, as it is a Private Limited Company. 

19. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control , commensurate with the size, 
scale and complexity of its operations, to ensure all the assets are safeguarded and protected against 
loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are authorized, regarded and reported 
correctly. The internal control is supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits, review by 
management and procedures. Internal control is designed to ensure that the financial and other 
records are reliable for preparing financial statements and other data, and for maintaining 
accountability of assets. 

20. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained 
by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 
134(5) of the Act: 

i. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, 
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures, if any; 

ii. that such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been 
selected and applied consistently and judgement and estimates have been made that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

iii. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

v. that the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively as at and during 
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025; and 

vi. that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and 
were adequate and operating effectively. 

21. DETAILS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The Company has laid down set of standards, processes and structure which enables to implement 
internal financial controls across the organization and that such controls are adequate and are 
operating effectively. 
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Annexure 2 to the Auditor's Report provides for the Auditor's opinion on the Internal Financial 
Controls of the Company. 

During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been observed for inefficiency 
or inadequacy of such controls. 

22. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEBI CIRCULAR ON EASE OF DOING BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT 
OF CORPORA TE BOND MARKETS- REVISION IN THE FRAMEWORK FOR FUND RAISING BY 
ISSUANCE OF DEBT SECURITIES BY LARGE CORPORATES ("CIRCULAR"): 

In terms of Regulation 50B of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 
2021 read with Chapter XII of the SEBI NCS Master Circular on Fund raising by issuance of debt 
securitiesby large corporates ("LCs") dated May 22, 2024, as amended from time to time, the 
Company wasidentified as an LC in Financial Year (FY) 24-25, based on the erstwhile criteria as 
on March 31, 2024 and was required to raise a minimum 25% of their incremental borrowings done 
during the FY2024-25, through issuance of debt securities over a contiguous block of three years 
from Financial Year FY 2024-25 onwards. 

However, SEBI issued a Circular on October 19, 2023, revising the framework for fund raising by 
issuance of debt securities by LCs, applicable with effect from April 01, 2024. As per the revised 
framework, a fresh block of three years from FY 2024-25 onwards was provided to the LCs. 

The following are the details of the incremental borrowings done during the FY 2024-25: 

1. Outstanding Qualified Borrowings at the start of FY 24-25 (Rs. In Crores) : INR 2,029 

2. Outstanding Qualified Borrowings at the end of FY 24-25 (Rs. In Crores): INR 3,323 

3. Highest credit rating of the company: AAA Rated by CRISIL and CARE 

4. Incremental borrowing done during FY 24-25 (qualified borrowing) (Rs. In Crores): INR 1,468 

5. Borrowings by way of issuance of debt securities during FY 24-25 (Rs. In Crores): NIL 

23. AUDITORS: 

Statutory Auditors: 

In terms of Section 139 of the Act, S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP (ICAI Firm Registration No.: 
101049W/E300004 ), Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company at the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting held in year 2022 for a period of five consecutive 
years commencing from the conclusion of the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in year 2026. 

Internal Auditors: 

In terms of Section 138 of the Act and other applicable laws, the Board at its meeting held on April 23, 
2024, had appointed KPMG Assurance and Consulting Services LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the 
Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31 , 2025. 

Cost Auditors: 

In terms of Section 148 of the Act and other applicable laws, the Board at its meeting held on April 23, 
2024, had appointed M/s. GSR & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No: 000069), as 
the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31 , 2025. 
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Secretarial Auditor: 

In terms of the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules 2014 and other applicable provisions, the Company at its 
meeting held on April 23, 2024 had appointed M/s. RJSY & Associates,Company Secretaries (Firm 
Registration No: P2016MH057200) to undertake the Secretarial Audit ofthe Company for the 
Financial Year 2024-25. 

The report of the Secretarial Auditor in the prescribed Form MR-3 is given at "Annexure Ill" to the 
Board's Report. The said Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, 
adverse remarks or disclaimers. 

24. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, was applicable to the Company and 
accordingly such accounts and records are maintained. 

25. ANNUAL RETURN OF THE COMPANY: 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act, a copy of the annual return has been placedon the website of 
the Company at https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/. 

26. DISCLOSURES UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

The Company has a Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy pursuant to the requirements of the 
Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and 
the Rules framed thereunder (the "POSH Act"). The Policy, as adopted by Embassy Office Parks 
Management Services Private Limited (acting as the Manager to Embassy Office Parks REIT, is 
applicable to the Company in the capacity of being its Special Purpose Vehicle. This Policy 
encompasses all employees, including permanent, contractual, temporary, and trainee staff. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT-
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

The Company has undertaken comprehensive internal measures, including the establishment of an 
internal grievance redressal mechanism, to ensure effective complaint management and to foster 
apositive work environment. Furthermore, during the year under review, no complaints or cases 
werefiled or were pending resolution under the POSH Act. 

27. COMMENTS ON THE QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR 
DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE AUDITORS: 

The Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 
do not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

28. COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable mandatory Secretarial 
Standards i.e., Secretarial Standard - 1 (Meetings of the Board of Directors) and Secretarial 
Standard - 2 (General Meetings) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
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29. REPORTING OF FRAUDS: 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors of the Company have 
not reported any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees as 
specified under Section 143( 12) of the Act. 

30. APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: 

During the year under review, the Company has not made any application nor are any proceedings 
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

31. DIFFERENCE IN THE AMOUNT OF VALUATION WHILE OBTAINING LOAN FROM BANKS OR 
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS: 

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any one-time settlement scheme 
with the banks or financial institutions. Hence, the disclosure required to be made pertaining to the 
details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and 
the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons 
thereof is not applicable. 

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

We thank our Investors, Bankers, Financial Institutions, various State and Central Government 
authorities and Stakeholders for their continued support during the year. We place on record our 
appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all levels. Our consistent growth was 
made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

No inee Director 
DIN: 08455937 

Address: J-302, Jacaranda Tower 6, Adarsh 
Palm Retreat, Devarabisnahalli, Bellandur, 
Bengaluru- 560103, Karnataka 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 28, 2025 
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~ 
Donnie Dominic George 
Nominee Director 
DIN: 09762419 

Address: 1629, 31st Cross, BSK 2nd Stage, 
16th Main, Bengaluru- 560070, Karnataka 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 28, 2025 

E: secretarial@embassyofficeparks.comIW:https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ I CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 
Registered Office: 12th Floor, Pinnacle Tower, Embassy One, 8, Bellary Road, Ganganagar, Bengaluru, Karnataka - 560 032 
T: +91 80 6935 4864 



Annexure - I 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in subsection (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm's length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis-

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025, which were not at arm's length basis . 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis-

All the transactions entered with Related Parties for the period under review were on arm's length basis 
and in ordinary course of business. The details of the related party transactions are set out in the notes to 
the Financial Statements. Since these transactions are in the ordinary course of business and are at arm's 
length basis, approval of the Board is not mandatory. However, as a matter of abundant caution, approval 
of the Board has been obtained from time to time. 

Further, no material contracts or arrangements or transactions referred to in subsection (1) of Section 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013, were entered by the Company with any Related Party, during the period under 
review. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

~i!t,. 
Nominee Director 
DIN : 08455937 

Address: J-302, Jacaranda Tower 6, Adarsh 
Palm Retreat, Devarabisnahalli, Bellandur, 
Bengaluru- 560103, Karnataka 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 28, 2025 

Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

~ 
Donnie Dominic George 
Nominee Director 
DIN: 09762419 

Address: 1629, 31st Cross, BSK 2nd Stage, 
16th Main, Bengaluru- 560070, Karnataka 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 28, 2025 
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Annexure - II 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORA TE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014] 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

The Board has adopted a policy on Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR"). The brief salient features of 
the CSR Policy of the Company is to-

(i) Outline projects, programs and activities to be undertaken by the Company; 

(ii) Specify the modalities of execution of such projects, programs and activities; 

(iii) Monitor the process to be followed for such projects, programs and activities; 

(iv) Directly or indirectly take up programs that benefit the communities in and around its work centers 
and results, over a period of time, in enhancing the quality of life and economic well-being of the 
local populace; and 

(v) Generate community goodwill for the Company and help reinforce a positive and socially 
responsible image, through our CSR Activities. 

The Company is committed to economic, environmental and social well-being of communities and would 
consider participating in appropriate CSR initiatives in the coming year(s). 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

S. No. Name of Director Designation Number of Number of meetings of 
I Nature of meetings of CSR CSR Committee 
Directorship Committee held attended during the 

during the year year 

1. Mr. Raghu Sapra Member 4 4 

2. Mr. Jitendra Mohandas Member 4 4 
Virwani 

3. Mr. Aravind Maiya<1> Member 4 2 

4. Mr. Ritwik Bhattacharjee<2> Member 4 2 

(1) Mr. Aravind Maiya ceased to be a member of the Committee due to his resignation effective 
November 07, 2024. 

(2) Mr. Ritwik Bhattacharjee was appointed as a member of the Committee effective November 08, 
2024 .. 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by 
the board are disclosed on the website of the company: https:/lwww.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out 
in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable 

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.: f57,14,81,154 
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(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. : 
~1, 14,29,623/-

( c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: Nil 

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any.: Nil 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] .: f1,14,29,623/-

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project).: 
,1, 14,29,623/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: f1, 14,29,623/­

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 
Spent for the 
Financial Year Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund 

(in Rs.) Unspent CSR Account as per specified under Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6). second proviso to section 135(5) 

Amount Date of transfer Name Amount Date of 
of the transfer 
Fund 

1, 14,29,623/- NA NA NA NA NA 

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: 
s. Particulars Amount 
No. 

(in Rs.) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section ~1, 14,29,623/-
of section 135 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ~1,14,29,623/-

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] Nil 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes activities of the Nil 
previous Financial Years, if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii-iv)] Nil 

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: 
SI. Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount 
No. Financial transferred Amount spent in transferred to a remaining 

Year(s) to Unspent in the Fund as to be spent 
CSR Unspent Financial specified under in 
Account CSR Year (in Schedule VII as succeeding 
under sub- Account Rs.) per second financial 
section (6) under proviso to sub- years (in 
(in Rs.) sub- section (5) of Rs.) 
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Deficiency, 
if any 



section section 135, if 
(6) of any 
section 
135 (in 
Rs.) 

Name Date of 
of the transfer. 
fund 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year: No 

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: NA 

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

SI. Short Pincode 
of the 
property 
or 
asset(s) 

Date of Amount of Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of 
No. particulars of 

the property 
or asset(s) 
[including 
complete 
address and 
location of 
the property) 

creation CSR the registered owner 
amount 
spent 

CSR Name 
Registration 
Number, if 
applicable 

Not Applicable 

Registered 
address 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5): Not Applicable 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Vik~ Tt Privare Limited 

I 

Ragh1 Sapra 
Nominee Director 
DIN: 08455937 

Donnie Dominic George 
Nominee Director 
DIN: 09762419 

-

Address: J-302, Jacaranda Tower 6, Adarsh 
Palm Retreat, Devarabisnahalli, Bellandur, 
Bengaluru- 560103, Karnataka 

Address: 1629, 31st Cross, BSK 2nd Stage, 
16th Main, Bengaluru- 560070, Karnataka 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 28, 2025 
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
VIKAS TELECOM PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by VIKAS TELECOM PRIVATE LIMITED the Company .  
 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of: 
 
(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(2)  
 
(3) e 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings (to the extent applicable); 

 
(4) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye- Laws framed there under; 

 
(5) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014; 

 
(6) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 
 
(7) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

and 
 
 

 

(" ") 

the Company's 

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under; 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 ('FEMA') and the Rules and Regulations mad 
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(8) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021 
 

(9) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 were not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period: 

 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 
 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018; 

 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021; 
 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;  
 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018; 
 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2019; 

and 
 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade 

Practices relating to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003. 
 
(10) Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified by the 

management, that is to say: 
 
(a) The Karnataka Land Revenue Act, 1964; and 
(b) The Registration Act, 1908. 

 
(11) Other laws to the extent applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the 

Company. 
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued pursuant to section 118 (10) of the Act, by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India as notified from time to time; 
 

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with The Bombay Stock Exchange.  
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate Notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting, to 
the extent practicable. 
 

as part of the minutes. 
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period the Company has: 

(1) Provided guarantee and security in connection with rupee term loan availed by Quadron Business 
Quadron Bank Limited in aggregate not exceeding 

Seven Thousand Million only). Special resolution of the 
members of the Company dated May 24, 2024 was passed for approving the same. The Directors 
were interested in the said transaction being common Directors in Quadron and the Company, and 
the Company has accordingly complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 
2013.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured and recorded 

Parks Private Limited (" ") from ICICI 
t7,000.00 million (Indian Rupees 
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(2) At its Board meeting held on November 08, 2024 taken on record the letter of withdrawal of 
nomination of Mr. Aravind Maiya, Nominee Director of the Company, issued by Embassy Office 
Parks Management Services Private Limited EOPMSPL , Manager to Embassy Office Parks 
REIT EOP REIT , and that he has ceased to hold office of Nominee Director from the close of 
business on November 07, 2024. Further, at the same meeting, the Board of Directors of the 
Company, approved the appointment of Mr. Ritwik Bhattacharjee holding DIN: 07371685, 
nominee of EOPMSPL, Manager to EOP REIT, as a Nominee Director of the Board of the 
Company with effect from the commencement of business on November 08, 2024. 
 

  

                          For RJSY & ASSOCIATES  
                         Company Secretaries 
                         Firm Registration No.: P2016MH057200 

  

  

 
 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 28, 2025 

Harshini Binoy Parikh 
Membership No.: A24652 

                 Certificate of Practice No.: 27301 
ICSI UDIN: A024652G000212268 
Peer Review Number: 5889/2024 

                                                                                              

  

 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which his annexed as Annexure A and forms an 
integral part of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(" ") 
(" ") 
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To, 
The Members, 
VIKAS TELECOM PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
 

 
(1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 
(2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
(3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company. 
 
(4) Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
 
(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

 
(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

                                                                                                 For RJSY & ASSOCIATES  
                                                                                                 Company Secretaries 

                                                                                                        Firm Registration No.: P2016MH057200 
 
 
 
 

                                                                       Harshini Binoy Parikh 
                                                                            Membership No.: A24652 

                                                                                          Certificate of Practice No.: 27301 
Place: Mumbai                                                                                ICSI UDIN: A024652G000212268 
Date: April 28, 2025                                                                       Peer Review Number: 5889/2024 
                                                                     

'Annexure A' 

HARSHINI 
BINOY 
PARIKH 
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